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Financial and Operating Highlights
HBREERE

Result E

Revenue A

Profit attributable to RAREB A
owners of the Company i3yl

Basic earnings per share (HK cents) &A% EAZEF| GE(L)
Interim and proposed final dividends A HA & 72 3% & A% < 2f

per share (HK cents) A& 82 GBI
Financial Position B AR R,
Net current assets BB ESFE
Total interest-bearing bank loans FFBRITE A
Key Financial Ratios FEMKLLE
Gross profit margin FEAE
Net profit margin e[z
Return on equity A% 7K [2] 7 =R
Current ratio BN &
Gearing ratio” BEAMGBHEEO
Operating Statistics EEYE
Throughput (metric tonnes) & & (AHE)
Nanijing terminal R EE
Ningbo terminal TSR
Tianjin terminal RAENGEE
Jetty utilisation rate® MSSER AR
Nanjing terminal g
Ningbo terminal FRISER
Tianjin terminal RAETEEE
Notes:

(1) The calculation of the gearing ratio is based on the sum of non-
current and current bank loans divided by total assets multiplied
by 100%.

(2)  The utilisation rate is calculated by our record of the annual actual
throughput via jetties divided by (i) the total annual designed
throughput capacity of jetties for Nanjing terminal and Ningbo
terminal in relation to the operating period; and (ii) the total annual
adjusted designed throughput capacity of the jetty for the Tianjin
terminal in relation to the operating period.
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2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000 % Change
FET FHETT B %
261,574 270,020 8.1)
80,933 104,234 (22.4)
7.29 9.39 (22.4)
5.8 5.8 -
197,712 295,991 (33.2)
133,298 149,035 (10.6)
57.2% 60.0% (2.8)
35.6% 43.8% 8.2)
8.6% 11.1% (2.5)
2.2 4.9
11.0% 12.1% (1.1)
1,475,500 1,722,100 (14.3)
278,100 253,500 9.7
146,500 170,000 (13.8)
23.3% 48.8% (25.5)
58.9% 30.0% 28.9
48.8% 56.7% (7.9)
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to
present the annual results of Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited
(the “Group” or “Dragon Crown”) for the year ended 31 December
2014.

HEALTHY OPERATIONAL ENVIRONMENT
WITH SOLID BUSINESS FOUNDATION

Although China recorded its slowest GDP growth in more than five
years, the results were better than expected, rising by 7.4% year-
on-year to approximately RMB63,646.3 billion in 2014. The chemical
industry also exhibited growth thanks to the price of crude oil, which
negatively spiked and led to cheaper chemical products available
on the market. The healthy business environment enabled Dragon
Crown to thrive.

Dragon Crown recorded revenue of HK$261.6 million (2013:
HK$270.0 million) and net profit of HK$93.2 million (2013: HK$118.3
million) as at the financial year ended 31 December 2014. The net
profit decline was mainly due to the depreciation of RMB in the year,
lacking of one-off other income, increase of fixed assets depreciation
and pipe racks rental.

Contributions from our visionary management team have been
essential in maintaining the Group’s healthy operation. Having
established a solid business foundation over the years, we were able
to leverage our position as a leading liquid chemical storage and
integrated terminal service provider to sustain ties with world-class
chemical enterprises, such as Celanese Corporation. The income
secured from such ties was in itself sufficient to ensure satisfactory
financial results for the year. Given that the liquid chemicals handled
by the Group are applicable to various daily consumer products on
the market; demand will grow from players in the plastics, paints,
textiles and solvents industries.

It is worth noting as well that Phase Ill of the Nanjing terminal has
contributed to the Group’s revenue for the entire year, while our
second ethylene tank is expected to fully contribute revenue in 2015.
We believe that expanding storage capacity will enable us to grasp
opportunities available within China’s liquid chemical industry and
also enhance Dragon Crown’s leading position in the industry.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

During the year, we paid close attention to our cash flow and
maintained a healthy balance sheet, characterized by sound liquidity.
As a result, we have sufficient capital to support the sustained
growth of the Group.

DIVIDENDS

In recognition of the support of our shareholders, an interim dividend
of HK2.0 cents (2013: HK2.0 cents) per share was declared and paid
during the year. In addition, the Board has proposed a final dividend
of HKB.8 cents per share (2013: HKB3.8 cents). The total dividends
per share in 2014 was HK5.8 cents, which represents 79.5% of the
profit attributable to shareholders for the year. This is consistent with
the Group’s dividend payout in previous years.

SAFETY

Employee safety has been our top priority for many years now, which
is why we provide regular training to all of our staff members, as well
as develop and implement HSE (Health, Safety and Environment)
policies in accordance with national and industry standards. Due to
our careful attention to safety, we did not experience any material
incidents in 2014. We intend to seek further improvements in this
area, with the ultimate goal of providing safe and quality services to
our customers.

EXPANDING MARKET OFFERS PROMISING OUTLOOK

Despite the challenging economic environment, we are optimistic
about the prospects for the liquid chemical industry. With support
from an expanding consumer market for basic chemical materials
and chemical products in China, we believe that demand for our
services will continue to grow, and we are ready to satisfy such
growth.

With our world-class expertise and excellent facilities and services,
we have built a strong reputation and earned the trust of our
customers, which include renowned large-scale multinational
chemical enterprises. Capitalizing on the global trend for outsourcing
logistics arrangements, we see the opportunity to introduce new
cost-effective solutions that enable our customers to reduce costs,
increase flexibility and raise efficiencies as a whole.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited & EZERGRA =
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The first full-year operations at the Phase Il terminal in Nanjing
is another positive development, leading to additional profit
contributions to the Group as expected. The Group’s influence in
the industry has been reinforced as well. Already, we have secured
long-term terminal service contracts with our customers, which will
account for over 63% of the storage capacity of our 11 new tanks.
In addition, a second cryogenic ethylene tank has been constructed
and commenced operation in the end of 2014. It will help Dragon
Crown to capture rapid demand for liquid chemical terminal services
from current and potential customers in China.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all of our colleagues
for their efforts and commitment to the Group. | would also like
to express my sincere gratitude to all of our business partners,
customers and shareholders for their continuous support. Going
forward, we will strive to deliver sustainable growth and generate
maximum value for our shareholders. While doing so, we trust that
the Group will continue to receive the unwavering support of all our
stakeholders.
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Directors and Senior Management
EERGREEAR

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. NG, Wai Man, aged 58, is an executive Director and the
chairman of the Company. Mr. NG is the founder of our Group
and is principally responsible for operation of our Board and is the
key decision-maker of our Group. He is responsible for formulating
the overall business strategic development for our Group. Mr. NG
has accumulated around 26 years of management and operation
experience in the terminal and storage of liquid chemical products
industry. Mr. NG is the founder of Dragon Source Industrial Limited
and its invested entity, Ningbo Haixiang Liquid Chemical Store Co.,
Ltd. (the predecessor of Ningbo Xinxiang Liquid Chemical Store Co.,
Ltd. (“Ningbo Xinxiang”)), and has managed its operation since 1988.
Mr. NG was the president and legal representative of Nanjing Dragon
Crown Liquid Chemicals Terminal Co., Ltd from April 2004 to 2007
responsible for overseeing strategic development and management
of resources. From December 1993 to September 2004, Mr. NG
was a director of Ningbo Huaxiang Inspection Co., Ltd, a company
which provides inspection, certification and testing services. He
served as the chairman and general manager from October 1997
to October 2006 and legal representative from October 1997 to
October 2007 for Ningbo Free Trade Zone Dragon Crown Chemical
International Trade Company Ltd., a trading company, responsible
for strategic business management. Mr. NG was appointed as our
Director on 16 July 2010 and was re-designated as our executive
Director on 30 November 2010.

Mr. TING Yian Ann, aged 54, is an executive Director and the chief
executive officer of the Company. Mr. TING is principally responsible
for overall management and strategic development, major decision-
making and communications with our key customers. Mr. TING
joined our Group in 2003. Since 2007, Mr. TING has served as
the president and legal representative of Nanjing Dragon Crown
Liquid Chemicals Terminal Co., Ltd. He has accumulated around
26 years of management and operation experience in the terminal
and storage of liquid chemical products industry. Prior to joining our
Group, Mr. TING was president and chief executive officer from 1997
to 2001 of GATX (Jurong) Terminals Pte Ltd., a company providing
global networks in bulk liquid storage, packaging, distribution and
logistic services in Singapore. His major duties at GATX (Jurong)
Terminals Pte Ltd. covered overall planning and operation of the
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Directors and Senior Management

company in the region, formulating strategies, cultivating relationship
with customers and authorities and developing internal controls
system. Mr. TING was the deputy chairman of the Singapore
Chemical Industry Council from 1997 to 2001 and also served as
the chairman of the Logistics & Distribution Committee established
under the Singapore Chemical Industry Council from 1997 to 2001.
Mr. TING graduated from University of Southern California in 1985
with a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration. Mr.
TING was appointed as an executive Director on 30 November
2010.

Mr. CHONG Yat Chin, aged 53, is an executive Director. Mr.
CHONG joined our Group in 1994. Mr. CHONG is principally
responsible for business and strategic development, major decision-
making and communications with major customers. He has
accumulated around 20 years of experience in the liquid chemical
products terminal and storage industry. Prior to joining our Group,
Mr. CHONG worked for Mitsui & Company (Hong Kong) Limited, an
international conglomerate engaging in various businesses, including
worldwide logistics and financing, development of infrastructure, for
over seven years. He was in the chemicals division and undertook
business support centered around petrochemical products chain
for logistics and distribution. He was also responsible for developing
strategic partnerships and customer relations. Mr. CHONG
graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1986 with
a Degree of Bachelor of Business Administration. Mr. CHONG was
appointed as an executive Director on 30 November 2010.
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Directors and Senior Management
EERGREEAR

Ms. CHAN Wan Ming, aged 49, is an executive Director. Ms.
CHAN is responsible for our Group’s day-to-day management,
administration as well as human resources management. She joined
our Group in 1988. Ms. CHAN has accumulated around 26 years of
management and operation experience in the terminal and storage
of liquid chemical products industry. Prior to joining our Group, Ms.
CHAN worked for Wai Hing Company, a trading company, from
November 1986 to July 1988 responsible for arrangements in trading
of chemicals. Ms. CHAN was appointed as an executive Director on
30 November 2010.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LUO Shijie, aged 69, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 30 November 2010. Mr. LUQO is also a member
of the audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of our Board. He was deputy factory director of SINOPEC
Sichuan Vinylon Works from 1988 to 1996. Mr. LUO was deputy
general manager of SINOPEC Sales Company from 1996 to 1999,
deputy director of SINOPEC Chemical Department from 2000 to
2008, and director of SINOPEC Chemical Department from 2003
to 2006. From 2005 to 2006, he also was general manager of
SINOPEC Chemical Products Sales Company. Mr. LUO graduated
from Tianjin University in 1968, majored in Precision Instrument.
He obtained the qualification as an engineer from Chongqging City
Government in 1981. He was appointed as senior engineer by
SINOPEC in 1987.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited & EZERGRA =
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. ZHU Wujun, aged 68, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 30 November 2010, Mr. ZHU is also a member
of the audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of our Board. Mr. ZHU was the deputy manager of
Sinopec Yangzi Petrochemical Company from 1985 to 1998. From
1998 to 2005, Mr. ZHU was a director and deputy manager of
Sinopec Yangzi Petrochemical Company Ltd. From 2005 to 2006,
Mr.ZHU was the deputy manager of Sinopec Chemical Products
Sales Company. Mr. ZHU was also the chairman of Yangyang
Chemical logistics and Trading Company from 1995 to 2005. Mr.
ZHU graduated from Zhejiang University in 1970 with a bachelor
degree. He has obtained the qualification as a senior economist from
the assessment committee of China Petrochemical Company which
assessed his qualification according to standards set by the State
Council in 1995.

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen, aged 47, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 30 November 2010. Mr. LAU is also chairman
of the audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of our Board. Mr. LAU served as the financial controller of
a subsidiary of NWS Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main
Board over 3 years and had worked with PricewaterhouseCoppers
for over 5 years. Mr. LAU served as non-executive director of ZMFY
Automobile Glass Services Limited, a company listed on the GEM
Board from September 2013 to December 2014. Mr. LAU graduated
from Oregon State University with a bachelor degree of science in
Business Administration in 1989. Mr. LAU is a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants as well as
a member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. LAU has been serving as the chief financial officer and company
secretary of Xinyi Glass Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board, since April 2003. Mr. LAU has served as an independent
non-executive director of China Qinfa Group Limited, a company listed
on the Main Board since June 2009. Mr. Lau has also served as an
independent non-executive director of SDM Group Holdings Limited,
a company Listed on the GEM Board, since September 2014.
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Directors and Senior Management
EERGREEAR

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. CHONG Man Kit, aged 37, was appointed as the chief financial
officer and company secretary of our Group on 17 July 2012. Mr.
Chong has over 15 years of professional experience in auditing,
accounting and corporate financial management. Prior to joining
our Group, Mr. CHONG worked as an audit manager in KPMG with
international work exposure in Hong Kong, mainland China and
United Kingdom from 2001 to 2010. During his tenure with KPMG,
he was experienced in providing audit and advisory services to
clients listed in New York, London and Hong Kong. Mr. CHONG
was the chief financial officer and deputy general manager of a
subsidiary of an American listed company from 2010 to 2012. Mr.
CHONG studied at Indiana University Bloomington in the United
States and graduated from the City University of Hong Kong in 2001
with a Degree (Honors) of Bachelor of Business Administration. Mr.
CHONG is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and is an IFRS certificate holder of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.

Mr. ZOU Qing Long, aged 50, is a director and general manager
of Nanjing Dragon Crown. Mr. ZOU has joined our Group since May
2004. Mr. ZOU is principally responsible for our Group’s overall
operational management in Nanjing. Mr. ZOU has accumulated
around 12 years of management and operation experience in
the terminal and storage of liquid chemical products industry
Mr. Zou’s major responsibility with the Group includes managing
and coordinating operation workflow, recruitment and training of
managers under his supervision, developing guidelines of operation
and maintenance. He is overseeing operations in our terminals in
Nanjing, Ningbo and Tianjin. Prior to joining the Group, he worked
in the China Maritime Safety Administration for 16 years in which he
gained valuable maritime logistics experience. Mr. ZOU graduated
from Nanjing Political College of the Chinese People’s Liberation
Army with a bachelor degree in Economics Management in 2003.

Mr. LAU Chi Ming, Sammy, aged 57, is the deputy general
manager of Nanjing Dragon Crown. Mr. LAU is principally
responsible for our Group’s business and new project development
of petrochemical terminal in Nanjing. Mr. LAU has accumulated
around 26 years of management and operation experience in the
terminal and storage of liquid chemical products industry. Mr. LAU
was an engineer of ExxonMobil Hong Kong Limited from 1988

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited & EZERGRA =
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Directors and Senior Management

to 2004 and he assumed management roles in HSE, logistics,
operations and maintenance. Mr. LAU graduated from The University
of Hong Kong with a degree of Bachelor of Science in Engineering
in 1979. Mr. LAU was elected as a Graduate of the Institution of
Engineers, Australia on 10 January 1985 and has been included in
the list of competent persons for Class 2-inspection and certification
of LPG compound and cylinder stores by Electrical & Mechanical
Services Department, Government of Hong Kong since 6 November
1996. He joined our Group in April 2005 as a project manager.

Mr. LI Hongtao, aged 43, is the general manager of Tianjin
Tianlong. Ll is principally responsible for our Group’s overall
operational management in Tianjin including managing and
coordinating workflow, setting up annual budget and fiscal plan,
providing training and recruitment of managers. Mr. LI has joined our
Group since 2001, principally responsible for business development
and communication with customers. Mr. LI has accumulated around
15 years of experience in the terminal and storage of liquid chemical
products. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. LI was a manager of
regional development and marketing department of GATX (Jurong)
Teminals Pte Ltd, a company providing global networks in bulk liquid
storage, packaging, distribution and logistic services in Singapore.
Mr. LI graduated from Saint-Petersburg State Academy of Culture in
Russia with academic certifications equivalent to master in Cultural
Studies in 1998.

Mr. XIANG Xiao Chu, aged 59, is the general manager of Ningbo
Ninxiang and Ningbo Xinxiang. Mr. XIANG has joined our Group
since November 1995. Mr. XIANG is principally responsible for our
Group’s overall operational management in Ningbo. Mr. XIANG
has accumulated around 22 years of management and operation
experience of which around 19 years are in the terminal and storage
of liquid chemical products industry. Prior to joining our Group, Mr.
XIANG served as deputy director the factory, division deputy chief of
Human Resource and Security and an office administrator in Ningbo
No.2 Pharmaceutical Factory of Zhejiang Province from February
1988 to October 1992. During the period from November 1992
to September 1995, Mr. XIANG served as an office administrator
handling selection and recruitment of new staff, finance management
and observing compliance of HSE policies of Zhejiang Chemicals
Factory (Yongxin Company). Mr. XIANG has served as a deputy
director and director of tank field, business manager and general
manager assistant in Ningbo Ninxiang and Ningbo Xinxiang since
October 1995. Mr. XIANG completed administration management
course of Self-Study Examination of the Higher Education of Zhejiang
Province in October 1990.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Dragon Crown is one of China’s leading integrated service providers
that specialized in the handling and storage of liquid chemical
products — operating a total of three terminals that are located in
Nanjing, Tianjin and Ningbo. Strategically situated in one of the major
petrochemical industry hubs of China, the Group has set up jetties
and tank farms (“Terminals”) along the coastal area to seize rising
demand from the petroleum and chemical industries. Dragon Crown
offers a high quality and comprehensive range of liquid chemical
terminal and storage services to customers through its own jetties,
storage tanks and dedicated pipelines.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the throughput volume of
liquid chemical products handled by the Group’s Nanjing, Tianjin and
Ningbo terminals reached 1,475,500 metric tonnes, 146,500 metric
tonnes and 278,100 metric tonnes respectively (2013: 1,722,100
metric tonnes, 170,000 metric tonnes and 253,500 metric tonnes
respectively), with a combined throughput volume of 1,900,100
metric tonnes (2013: 2,145,600 metric tonnes).

The following table provides an overview of the existing terminals and
facilities as at 31 December 2014:

E £ ]

EARTE —REALNGEEBERBHE
o EEEIRNERRFETRE 'ﬂ:%DD ’
EER RERERESE=(AWHE - KK
MR R EPEFELMETITENR
S AEBEELBEEY THEK
W ([#5EE ) BB Mt TIT¥ Haxig
REOF K- BAERHBAHE  FEM
EHEEREFIREemE LFARE
LB mRETT RAESERT -

REZE2014F 12 A31 BIEFE - AEER
R REMEFNBERENRELESR
HAHE5 551,475,500 AW « 146,500 2
W8 K% 278,100 A WA (20134 : 1,722,100 &
5~ 170,000°2M8 &2 253,500 AW ) © A HH
23 1,900,100 AME(20134F : 2,145,600
RME) o

TREVN20145F12 A31 HHE ABE KL
RS

Existing Terminals and facilities Nanjing Ningbo Tianjin Total
RAERERRIE [ EiR Rz #Et
Number of tanks RS 32 12 15 59
Storage capacity (m?) FRAE (LK) 210,000 29,000 24900 263,900
Number of berth RRIEL 3 1 1 5
Berthing capacity (dwt) JBEAzEE 7 (FEME) 45,000* 3,000 3,000
Jetty designed throughput ISEERET AT 2

capacity (metric tonnes) (AME) 4,000,000 100,000 300,000 4,400,000
* Comprises three berths with capacity of 20,000 dwt, 20,000 dwt * B =1&% 5 A20,000EEHE - 20,000 % &=

and 5,000 dwt, respectively.

The main source of the Group’s revenue and profit is derived from
its flagship terminal, situated in the Nanjing Chemical Industry Park,
accounting for 94.2% (2013: 94.3%) of total profit during the year.
The Group’s major customer, Celanese Corporation (NYSE: CE) —
a world leading producer of acetyl products — also situated in the
same industrial park, contributed HK$248.5 million (2013: HK$234.5
million) in revenue to the Group, which is equivalent to 95.0% (2013:
86.9%) of total revenue during the year.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited SE&EEZERERA A

18 &2 5,000 & E WA AR A A,

REBEREBBEMABEAMEBIER A
FBRA RS F AR - AN F T B85
94.2% (20134 : 94.3%) - AEEHEE
BPENBH (MANESHRZHE : CE) At
RBLENCBEREER  IMIRZILE
B - RAFERREEERIRA 2.485 FH
JL(20134F : 2.345 88 7L) » HERBIA
2.95.0% (20134 : 86.9%) °



Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group’s second cryogenic ethylene tank was completed and
commenced operation in the end of 2014. The 20,000 m? tank,
which requires not only specific expertise to construct but also to
maintain and operate, allows for the storage of deep cooled liquids
at -104°Celsius.

Dragon Crown is in a strong financial position, with total assets of
HK$1,216.4 million (2013: HK$1,229.0 million) and total equity of
HK$1,005.0 million (2013: HK$1,011.5 million). The Group has cash
on hand of HK$322.6 million (2013: HK$320.5 million) and a healthy
gearing ratio of 11.0% (2013: 12.1%)).

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Despite the market volatility experienced by various industrial
sectors, the Group remains optimistic about the future outlook of the
chemical storage and logistics industry. Such optimism is based on
the Group’s ability to leverage on a successful business model, and
ongoing enhancement of its infrastructure to facilitate future growth
initiatives.

Construction of Nanjing Terminal Phase Il has been completed and
commenced operation in June 2013, delivering contributions to the
Group from the second half of the financial year. Long-term terminal
service contracts have been secured and the Group will continue to
capitalize on this new facility to spur business growth.

The second cryogenic ethylene tank has been constructed and
commenced operation in the end of 2014. It will help Dragon Crown
further capture demand from an expanding consumer market for
basic chemical materials and chemical products in China. The
second cryogenic tank is expected to provide full contributions in
2015.

EEEWED T

REBEE — (AR 2 FEER 2014 FIK
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FFEET T 104 EMRER VR - ™ME
FEAREREXNBREE  BEFER
IR SR E R S B

EARBEEMBE N HEHEE
12.164 B8 7T (2013 4F : 12,290 B8 7T) &
HREZE10.050188 7L (20134F  10.11518
BIL) c ARBERHAFERS3.226EB T
(20134 : 3205 W EEAER
£11.0% (20134 : 12.1%) M RAF/KF o
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Enhancing Dragon Crown’s leading position in the coastal regions
of China, particularly along the Yangtze River Delta and Bohai Bay
regions has always been its main business objective. Consistent with
this goal, the Group will actively explore new and existing business
opportunities alongside strengthening its existing infrastructure.

With advanced operations and a highly experienced management
team at the helm, Dragon Crown is set to consolidate its leading
position as an integrated terminal service provider in China. As it
continues to grow, the Group will remain committed to achieving
more positive financial results and delivering greater value to its
shareholders.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW
Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the revenue of the Group
decreased by 3.1% from HK$270.0 million in 2013 to HK$261.6
million. The decrease was mainly due to the combined effects of the
decrease in excess throughput revenue, and the full year impact in
revenue generated from Nanjing phase lIl.

Gross profit

For the year ended 31 December 2014, gross profit decreased by
7.6% from HK$161.9 million in 2013 to HK$149.5 million. The gross
profit margin decreased slightly by 2.8% to 57.2%.

The cost of services provided increased by 3.6% to HK$112.1 million
in 2014 compared with HK$108.1 million in 2013, which was mainly
due to the combined effects of the increase in depreciation, increase
in pipe racks rental fee and decrease in total cost of diesel fuel.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited & EZERGRA =

BAZTIEXBERAZEERNTELE
WwERELWL - CEAER=ANYEER
B SEREIBEE NEERMRREER
RSN - T TERIRRIRA R o

BELENSENREREEBEBNES
EARNIREBEE AT BEES BHERS
HERNALILL - FEESENER
AEBEKEER NAR  BRE S B
BEE - BRRHERERDRE -

M RGO

LUN

REBE2014F12A31HILFE - A&EE
WA R 2013 F 2 2.700 8B TR 3.1% &
2.6161EHBTT - ILRIBEZHNBESLE
WA RR AR RIGE = ELNEF
WA 2 HRIFZEME -

EH

AEE2014F12A31BIEFE - £FH
2013F 2 1.619B B TR 7.6% = 1.49518
BT o EFEEMTIE2.8% E57.2% °

REARFAK AR 20134 2 1.081 BA LI N
8.6%E2014F 21121 EH L TEHRP
PFrELM - BEMEE B RN RS mRE
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Other income

Other income decreased to HK$8.4 million from HK$13.0 million in
2013, which was mainly due to no arbitration income from a debtor
this year.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased by 32.7% from HK$34.2 million
in 2013 to HK$45.4 million. The increase was mainly attributable to
the loss on exchange differences.

Finance costs

Finance costs for the year increased to HK$4.4 million from HK$3.3
million in 2013. The Group entered into certain new loans during
the first half of 2013, and the interest expense increased in the year,
resulting from the full year impact in 2014.

Share of profits and losses of joint ventures and associates

The share of profits and losses of joint ventures and associates
decreased slightly to HK$6.0 million from HK$6.7 million in 2013.
Tax expense

The tax expense for the year decreased to HK$20.9 million from

HK$25.8 million in 2013. It was mainly due to the decrease in other
income.

EEEWED T
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USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The Group has received approximately HK$281.1 million net
proceeds, after deducting underwriting fee and other related
expenses, from listing of the Company’s shares in 2011.

These net proceeds were applied up to the year ended 31 December
2014 in accordance with the proposed applications set out in
the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the
Company’s prospectus dated 30 May 2011 (the “Prospectus”) and
the announcement dated 6 February 2013 headed “Change of use
of proceeds”, as follows:

Construction of second cryogenic R 2 KR
ethylene tank ot g

Construction of our third jetty SRR EE 3 EETGER

Construction of our dedicated railway system — EREFEKEL

Construction of nine general purpose BFROE—MmAR
storage tanks ey

General working capital —MREEES

The Group held the unutilised net proceeds in short-term deposits
or time deposits with banks in Hong Kong and Nanjing as at 31
December 2014.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited & EZERGRA =

LITRERABHZAE

AEEBARRFBRMHR 2011 F FHESE
HheHEERAREMBE@EEREZ ZFER
THREEA) 2,811 BT ©

BIEARRNFBHEA2011 45 A30H 2 B
ER(BRERD [ RREEIREHRIER
w8 MBEEA22013F2A6BEA &
EARRIEAR] 2 AMTEZEERAR
ZEMSHIEFBEEZ2014F12A31H1E
FEERWNT :

Net proceeds (HK$ million)

FEREFE(EEET)

Available Utilised Unutilised
AEA 2EA KRENA
133.1 132.3 0.8
46.6 46.6 -
40.0 - 40.0
33.3 33.3 -
28.1 28.1 -
281.1 240.3 40.8

R2014F 12 A31H - AKEHAREAME
IR 5 R DA RS BT Bk R BT RO S AE R
BEBRERZIRT
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND GEARING

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s total bank loans amounted
to HK$133.3 million (2013: HK$149.0 million), which included
RMB bank loans of RMB50.0 million (2013: RMB50.0 million). The
Group’s gearing ratio (total bank loans to total assets) was 11.0%
at 31 December 2014 (2013: 12.1%). The gearing structure was as
follows:

Total bank loans RITERBTE
Total assets BERE
Gearing ratio BEAGE

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s current assets and current
liabilities amounted to HK$361.5 million (2013: HK$372.8 million)
and HK$163.8 million (2013: HK$76.8 million), respectively. As at 31
December 2014, the Group’s current ratio decreased to 2.2 (2013:
4.9).

The Group strives to efficiently use its financial resources and adopts
a prudent financial policy in order to maintain a healthy capital ratio
and support its business expansion requirements.

EEEWED T

BEER  THEeRBEARE

M2014F12 H31 B - AEEBRITEFERE
A1.333 BB T (2013 4F : 1.4901E87T)
BIEARES50008 T2 AREIEITE R
(20134 : AR¥5,000870) » H2014 4
12A318  AEBE2EEBEXR(RITE
FUBHERNEERME) B11.0% (20135 :
121%) - EEBEXRWNT :

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAT
133,298 149,035
1,216,365 1,229,022
11.0% 12.1%

R2014F 12 A31 H » AEBRBHEERR
FBEDHIR3.615EBIL(20134F : 3.728
B87T) K& 1.638 18770 (20134F : 7,680 8
HBIT) e RN2014F 12 A31 A ANEB 7%
BLLETHE2.2(20134F : 4.9) ©

AEBEFREMMEREPBEER - RN

FEZMBEERE - AEFRRNEALLE
RS FEAEE 2 EBRREFK
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DEBT MATURITY PROFILE

The maturity profile of the Group’s bank loans is set out below:

RHERAER

AEBRITERHERBRRESIT

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHIT

Repayable FEIZRUR
Within one year —FR 90,798 14,167
In the second year EF 28,333 92,368
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FE-ZhF (BEBEMSF) 14,167 42,500
133,298 149,035

Note: All bank loans at 31 December 2014 are denominated in RMB and
HK currency.

PLEDGED ASSETS

Details of pledged assets as at 31 December 2014 are set out in note
26 to the financial statements.

FOREIGN CURRENCY AND INTEREST RATE RISKS

The Group’s cash and bank balances were primarily denominated in
RMB and HKS$. Its operating cash inflows and outflows were primarily
denominated in RMB and HK$. During the year, the Group did not
have any material foreign exchange exposure and had not used any
financial instruments for hedging purpose. As part of the Group’s
bank borrowings were denominated in RMB, the interest rates of
these bank borrowings are fixed from time to time. The Group will
closely monitor the interest rate movements and regularly review its
banking facilities so as to mitigate the expected interest rate risk.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited & EZERGRA =

Mt : R 2014512 A31 H » KREBRERTE
TIAANREE KB TTRHE -

BHEE

AREN2014F 12 A31 BIEHEE 2115
IR BTSRRI 3£ 26 ©
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of capital commitments as at 31 December 2014 are set out
in note 34 to the financial statements. As at 31 December 2014, the
Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had a total of 244 full
time employees (2013: 250). The Group provides competitive
remuneration package to retain its employees including salaries,
discretionary bonus, medical insurance, other allowance and
benefits in kind as well as mandatory provident fund schemes for
employees in Hong Kong and state-managed retirement benefit
schemes for employees in the PRC.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

During the year, the Group made no material acquisitions or
disposals of subsidiaries and associated companies.

EEEWED T
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Corporate Governance Report
/\‘ ‘FﬂisAﬁd:

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is pleased to
present this Corporate Governance Report in the Annual Report for
the year ended 31 December 2014.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability.

The Company has applied the principles as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”).

In the opinion of the directors, throughout the year, the Company has
complied with all the code provisions as set out in the CG Code.

The Company regularly reviews its corporate governance practices
to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the directors and the directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2014.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written
Guidelines”) for securities transactions by employees who are likely
to be in possession of inside information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines
by the employees was noted by the Company.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited SE&EEZERERA A

$AT%$AU%$ADW%h£\i
4¢mﬂm5¢¢&2¢&ﬁ%2¢%

A

Uﬂ}x
of
r
Eﬂ

4

RERE

&b

AEBBNERSKEZLEESR
ERREER RRACEEERMEN -

IAER

ARRIEERMEEHARXSMARRAR
(TBprl)@s EmARRT EmRA])
e+ rmprE B AT RI([ERERT
A DAZRAY -

BEXZRR ARFAEREFAEST
AT RIFTELZ AT A T RINMESC

TEE

BHXHZERETH

KRB RN TR B 8+ Al T3
TAESETBFR 2 ZESFA([1E%
SPAND) o

ARAREREZEESEFHAREER &=
BHEZREZE2014F12 A1 HIEFEAD
ESPIRAESTA] o

KARIEFRAIBEEEARARAIARERZ
EEETEAFAR IR EEmESI([EEE
ME3E3]]) » EIEHA T ERPMEESTE|

BEARBMAM  HEEAREE
[EEEE

REEZ



Corporate Governance Report

THE BOARD

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises 7 members, consisting of 4 executive
directors, and 3 independent non-executive directors.

The Board comprises the following directors:

Executive directors:

Mr. NG Wai Man (Chairman)

Mr. TING Yian Ann (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. CHONG Yat Chin

Ms. CHAN Wan Ming

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen
Mr. LUO Shijie
Mr. ZHU Wujun

The list of directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company from time to time pursuant
to the Listing Rules. The independent non-executive directors are
expressly identified in all corporate communications pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

The biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out
under “Directors and Senior Management” section in this annual
report. None of the members of the Board is related to one another.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company fully supports the division of responsibility between the
Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer to ensure a
balance of power and authority. The positions of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer are held by Mr. NG Wai Man and Mr. TING Yian Ann
respectively. Their respective responsibilities are clearly defined and
set out in writing.
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/\‘ ‘FﬂisAﬁd:

Currently, the Chairman provides leadership and is responsible
for the effective functioning of the Board in accordance with good
corporate governance practice whereas the Chief Executive
Officer focuses on implementing objectives, policies and strategies
approved and delegated by the Board.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three independent non-executive directors representing one-
third of the Board with at least one of whom possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The independent non-executive directors bring a wide range of
business and financial expertise, experience and independent
judgment to the Board. Through active participation at Board
meetings, taking the lead in managing issues involving potential
conflict of interests, all independent non-executive directors
have made various contributions to the effective direction of the
Company.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all independent non-executive directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines as set out in the
Listing Rules.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS, APPOINTMENT AND RE-
ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of directors are laid down in the Company’s Articles of
Association. The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing
Board composition, monitoring the appointment of directors
and assessing the independence of independent non-executive
directors.

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive

directors shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election, whereas code provision A.4.2 states that all directors
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appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment and that
every director, including those appointed for a specific term, shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Each of the independent non-executive directors of the Company is
appointed for a specific term of one year and is subject to retirement
by rotation once every three years.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, all
directors of the Company are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and any new director appointed to
fill a causal vacancy shall submit himself/herself for re-election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, Ms.
Chan Wan Ming, Mr. Luo Shijie and Mr. Zhu Wujun shall retire by
rotation and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election pursuant
to the Company’s Articles of Association.

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES AND
CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and
performance. The Board has delegated to the Chief Executive
Officer, and through him, to the senior management the authority
and responsibility for the day-to-day management and operation of
the Group.

All directors have carried out their duties in good faith, in compliance
with applicable laws and regulations and in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders at all times.

DELEGATION OF MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company,
including: approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those that may involve
conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of directors
and other significant financial and operational matters.
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All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with
a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable laws
and regulations are followed. Each director is normally able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense, upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and the senior
management. The delegated functions and responsibilities are
periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board
prior to any significant transactions entered into by the aforesaid
officers.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Company.

Each newly appointed director receives formal, comprehensive and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to
ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and full awareness of director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements.

Continuing briefing and professional development for directors will
be arranged where necessary.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant.
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During the year ended 31 December 2014, the following directors

attended training session arranged by professional institution:

Directors

Executive Directors
Mr. NG Wai Man

Mr. TING Yian Ann

Mr. CHONG Yat Chin

Ms. CHAN Wan Ming

Independent
Non-Executive Directors

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen

Mr. LUO Shijie

Mr. ZHU Wujun

Topic

Updates of Corporate Governance
and Listing Rules Compliance for
Directors

Updates of Corporate Governance
and Listing Rules Compliance for
Directors

Updates of Corporate Governance
and Listing Rules Compliance for
Directors

Updates of Corporate Governance
and Listing Rules Compliance for
Directors

Updates of Corporate Governance
and Listing Rules Compliance for
Directors

Updates of Corporate Governance
and Listing Rules Compliance for
Directors

Updates of Corporate Governance
and Listing Rules Compliance for
Directors

In addition, relevant reading materials including legal and regulatory

update/seminar handouts have been provided to the directors for

their reference and studying.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
Board committees are posted on the Company’s website and the
Stock Exchange’s website and are available to shareholders upon
request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are
independent non-executive directors and the list of the chairman
and members of each Board committee is set out under “Corporate
Information” on page 139.

Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
at the Company’s expense.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises five members, namely, Mr.
LAU Sik Yuen (chairman), Mr. LUO Shijie, Mr. ZHU Wujun, Mr.
NG Wai Man and Mr. TING Yian Ann, the majority of which are
independent non-executive directors.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board composition, developing and formulating relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of directors,
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of directors, and assessing the independence
of independent non-executive directors.

The Nomination Committee has adopted a set of nomination
procedures for selection of candidates for directorship of the
Company by making reference to the skills, experience, professional
knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of such
individuals, the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations.
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In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects set out in the Board
diversity policy, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and industry and regional experience. The Nomination
Committee would discuss and agree on measurable objectives for
achieving diversity on the Board, where necessary, and recommend
them to the Board for adoption.

The Nomination Committee met once during the year under review
to review the structure, size and composition of the Board and the
independence of the independent non-executive directors, and
to consider the qualifications of the retiring directors standing for
election at the Annual General Meeting. The Nomination Committee
considered an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the
Board is maintained.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises five members, namely,
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (chairman), Mr. LUO Shijie, Mr. ZHU Wujun, Mr.
NG Wai Man and Mr. TING Yian Ann, the majority of which are
independent non-executive directors.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages of all directors
and the senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no director
or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference to
the performance of the individual and the Company as well as market
practice and conditions.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the year
under review to review and make recommendation to the Board
on the remuneration policy and structure of the Company, and the
remuneration packages of all directors and senior management and
other related matters.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors, namely, Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (chairman), Mr. LUO Shijie
and Mr. ZHU Wujun, including one independent non-executive
director with the appropriate professional qualifications. None of
the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the
Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

° To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the external auditors
before submission to the Board

° To review the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees
and terms of engagement, and make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditors

° To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year under
review to review interim and annual financial results and reports
and significant issues on the financial reporting and compliance
procedures, internal control and risk management systems, scope of
work and appointment of external auditors, connected transactions
and arrangements for employees to raise concerns about possible
improprieties.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditors twice without the
presence of the executive directors.

The Group’s accounting principles and practices and the audited

consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2014 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS LRELMAE
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the E=gRERTEEESTASTANE
code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. D.3.1 IRPTHE VAL

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, training and continuous professional development
of directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Model Code and Written Employee Guidelines,
and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
this Corporate Governance Report.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each director at the Board and Board
Committee meetings and the general meeting of the Company held
during the year ended 31 December 2014 is set out in the table
below:

EEEERNEARARIZEEERRERT
BoEBFREREBABZHFIIRBESR
XER RNRBIHEETERERBRE &
STRETFARESEmMESIARBETRE
ERATAIRGEE MEREZLBERRE
iR e

ESREAENAHFLH

REEHFEHZE2014F12 531 Eutiﬁﬁﬁ%
THNERGREELZEEHRURAEAR
SN Th s & Rl N

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HE/ERRY

Nomination Remuneration Audit Annual General
Name of Director Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Y] Exg REZEE® HFMESEE EKZERET RREFAE
Mr. Ng Wai Man 5/5 11 2/2 - 11
RERESE
Mr. Ting Yian Ann 5/5 11 2/2 - 11
BREREE
Mr. Chong Yat Chin 5/5 - - - 1A
HEELE
Ms. Chan Wan Ming 5/5 - - - 1/1
FE )
Mr. Lau Sik Yuen 5/5 1/1 2/2 2/2 11
BHRESE
Mr. Luo Shijie 5/5 11 2/2 2/2 il
SRtrERsL
Mr. Zhu Wujun 5/5 1/1 2/2 2/2 11
ARELE
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Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held meetings
with the independent non-executive directors without the presence
of executive directors during the year.

Practices and Conduct of Board Meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are
normally made available to directors in advance.

Notice of regular Board meetings is served to all directors at least
14 days before the meeting. For other Board meetings, reasonable
notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all directors at least 3 days before each
Board meeting to keep directors apprised of the latest developments
and financial position of the Company and to enable them to
make informed decisions. The Board and each director also have
separate and independent access to the senior management where
necessary.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking and keeping
minutes of all Board meetings. Draft minutes are normally circulated
to directors for comment within a reasonable time after each meeting
and final versions are open for directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a
director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly
convened Board meeting. The Company’s Articles of Association
contain provisions requiring directors to abstain from voting and not
to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions
in which such directors or any of their associates have a material
interest.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing

the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2014.
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The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price-
sensitive announcements and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other statutory and regulatory requirements.

The Management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which
are put to the Board for approval.

The directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 50 to 51.

Where appropriate, a statement will be submitted by the Audit
Committee explaining its recommendation regarding the selection,
appointment, resignation or dismissal of external auditors and the
reasons why the Board has taken a different view from that of the
Audit Committee.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the remuneration paid/
payable to the Company’s external auditors, Messrs Ernst & Young,
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in respect of audit services and non-audit services is set out below: WALk @t B /AT 2 B & T -
Service Category Fees Paid/Payable (HK$)
BRI et ENER (GEYE)
Audit Services ZHARTE
- Annual audit —FEEZ 1,105,000
- Independent auditors letter on continuing —ERBEEBT S8
connected transactions VR 2 GG 41,000
Non-audit Services IHZE RIS
— Review of interim results — MR EEE 342,000
— Taxation services — BRI 106,500
1,594,500
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

During the year under review, the Board, through the Audit
Committee, conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Group, including the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function, and their training programmes and
budget.

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control
system to safeguard shareholder investments and Company assets
and reviewing the effectiveness of such on an annual basis through
the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee oversees the internal control system of the
Group, reports to the Board on any material issues and makes
recommendations.

The internal control system of the Group is designed to facilitate
effective and efficient operations, to ensure reliability of financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations, to
identify and manage potential risks, and to safeguard assets of the
Group.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at shareholder
meetings, including the election of individual directors.

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be voted on
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after each
shareholder meeting.

CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING
BY SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to Articles 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association, an
extraordinary general meeting shall be called by the Board on the
written requisition of any one or more shareholders of the Company,
provided that such shareholder(s) held at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
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Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company. Such meeting shall be called for the transaction of any
business specified in the written requisition to the Board or the
Secretary of the Company; and shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT GENERAL
MEETINGS

There are no statutory provisions granting the right to shareholders
to put forward or move new resolutions at general meetings under
the Cayman Islands Companies Law or the Articles of Association
of the Company. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may
request the Company to convene a general meeting following the
procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

PUTTING FORWARD ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.

Note: The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous
enquiries.

CONTACT DETAILS

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: Unit No. 3, 18th Floor

Convention Plaza, Office Tower

No. 1 Harbour Road

Hong Kong

(For the attention of the Board of Directors/Company
Secretary)

Fax: 2587 1338

Email: myfarm@dragoncrown.com
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For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement,
or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address, except for
the registered office of the Company, and provide their full name,
contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance of
transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information, which
will enable shareholders and investors to make the best investment
decisions.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The
Chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee or,
in their absence, other members of the respective committees
and, where applicable, the chairman of the independent Board
committee, are available to answer questions at shareholder
meetings.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a
website at www.dragoncrown.com, where up-to-date information
and updates on the Company’s business operations and
developments, financial information and other information are
available for public access.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its Articles of Association. An up to date version of
the Company’s Articles of Association is also available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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The directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with
the audited financial statements of Dragon Crown Group Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2014,

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of
the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note
19 to the financial statements. There were no significant changes in
the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2014 and the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out
in the financial statements on pages 52 to 137.

An interim dividend of HK2.0 cents (2013: HK2.0 cents) per share
was paid on 25 September 2014.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK3.8 cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2014 to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company at the close of business on Friday, 29 May 2015. The
proposed final dividend is subject to the approval of the shareholders
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. This recommendation
has been incorporated in the financial statements as an allocation of
retained profits within the equity section of the statement of financial
position.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the Group’s results, assets and liabilities for the past
five financial years, as extracted from audited financial statements,

is set out on page 138. The summary does not form a part of the
audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the Group’s property, plant and equipment
during the year are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.
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BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of the bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2014 are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year are set out in note 28 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders of the Company.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Company and the Group are
set out in note 30 to the financial statements and the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 56 and 57, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2014, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands amounted to HK$539.7 million (2013:
HK$536.2 million), of which HK$42.2 million has been proposed
as a final dividend for the year. In accordance with Section 34 of
the Companies Law, dividend may be paid out of the amount of
HK$431.5 million (2013: HK$431.5 million) of the Company’s share
premium account subject to a solvency test and the provisions of the
Company’s memorandum and articles of association.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the total revenue to the Group’s top five customers
and largest customer accounted for 96.7% and 39.5% of the total
revenue for the year. The cost of services provided by the Group’s
top five suppliers and largest supplier accounted for 44.1% and
17.6% of the total cost of services for the year.

None of the directors or any of their associates or any shareholder
of the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had beneficial
interests in the Group’s top five suppliers or customers referred to
above.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company who were in office during the year and
up to the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Ng Wai Man (Chairman)

Mr. Ting Yian Ann (Chief executive officer)
Mr. Chong Yat Chin

Ms. Chan Wan Ming

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Lau Sik Yuen

Mr. Luo Shijie

Mr. Zhu Wujun

Pursuant to Article 84(1) of the Articles of Association of the Company,
Ms. Chan Wan Ming, Mr. Luo Shijie and Mr. Zhu Wujun are subject to
retirement by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from each of its independent non-executive directors and at the date
of this report still considers them to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Ms. Chan Wan Ming has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years which commenced on 1
December 2010. Ms. Chan has entered into a renewal contract
with the Company on 2 April 2014 for a term of three years effective
from 1 December 2013 and will continue thereafter for successive
one-year terms until terminated by not less than three months’
written notice.

Mr. Luo Shijie and Mr. Zhu Wujun have renewed service
contracts with the Company for a term of one year effective from
1 December 2011 and will continue thereafter for successive
one-year terms until terminated by not less than one month’s
written notice.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions”
in this report and note 35 (Related Party Transactions) to the financial
statements, no director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of
the directors and the chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which have been
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in
the register required to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO
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or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) were as follows:

(i) Interests in the shares of the Company

Personal
Name of directors Interests
2] BARS
Mr. Ng Wai Man (“Mr. NG”) RERFAE(TREE]) 1,002,000
Mr. Ting Yian Ann (‘Mr. TING")  BRE R &4 (TR%E4]) -
Mr. Chong Yat Chin (‘Mr. CHONG") 3 HE &£ ([H44£]) 762,000
Ms. Chan Wan Ming (‘Ms. CHAN") BREB 7+ ([fRzt]) 184,000
Notes:
1. All interests of the directors in the shares of the Company were

long positions.

2. Mr. NG was the beneficial owner of all the issued share capital of

Lirun Limited (“Lirun”) and Sure Port Investments Limited (“Sure
Port”) and therefore was deemed to be interested in a total of
778,902,000 shares of the Company held by Lirun and Sure Port.

3. Mr. TING was the beneficial owner of all the issued share capital of
Ansen International Limited (“Ansen”) and therefore was deemed to
be interested in 33,380,000 shares of the Company held by Ansen.

4. Mr. CHONG was the beneficial owner of all issued share capital of
Silver Coin International Limited (“Silver Coin”) and therefore was
deemed to be interested in 15,950,000 shares of the Company
held by Silver Coin.

Directors’ Report
EEERE

LA (T ETTRE D) sk TR E
BIARERITERRHOEETA([E
S B |) BT HE AL T KB AR P 2 3
BABIT -

() RHAERARRG RS

Approximate
percentage of
existing issued
Corporate share capital
Interests Total of the Company
EERRARE
BRITRE
AEER Bt FOE
778,902,000 779,904,000 70.28%
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(i) Long positions in the shares of associated corporations of the

Company

Name of

associated
Name of directors corporation Capacity
EENR HEEEER g%
Mr. NG Lirun Beneficial owner
RAEHE 18 EnEAA
Mr. NG Sure Port Beneficial owner
RAEHE S IIE EnEEA
Mr. TING Ansen Beneficial owner
PR HE EnEEA
Mr. CHONG Silver Coin Beneficial owner
oA EnEEA

(i) MARFREEOEERD 2HFR

Number of shares
held in associated
corporation
RIEEEE
RGO E

40

10

20

30

Percentage of
existing issued
share capital

of the associated
corporations
REESEERE
ERTREATSL

100%

100%

100%

100%

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of the
directors nor chief executives of the Company had any interests or
short positions in any shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2014, so far as was known to the directors of
the Company, the following persons or corporations (other than
directors or chief executives of the Company) who had interests and
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO or as otherwise naotified to the Company were as follows:
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Name of shareholders

R B

Lirun

Vb

Value Partners Group
Limited

BEKEBRAT

Value Partners Hedge
Master Fund Limited

Notes:

Capacity

51

Beneficial owner @

BEnEAAC

Interest of controlled
corporation ©@ad©
RIEEE TR QRO

Beneficial owner “and®
EmEaAORO

Number of shares
or underlying shares
held in the Company

RARAF
FrsEER o8 E

762,402,000

110,966,000

110,694,000

G
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Approximate
percentage of
existing issued
share capital

of the Company
HRARRBE#
TRAHEHE S

68.70%

9.99%

9.97%

-
2

rv
\

All interests of the substantial shareholders in the shares of the
Company were long position.

Mr. NG was the beneficial owner of all the issued share capital
of Lirun and therefore was deemed to be interested in a total of
762,402,000 shares of the Company held by Lirun.

Value Partners Group Limited was deemed to hold interests in the
110,966,000 shares in the Company by virtue of its control over
Value Partners Limited which held direct interests in the Company.
Value Partners Limited was wholly owned by Value Partners Hong
Kong Limited which was wholly owned by Value Partners Group
Limited.

Besides, of these 110,966,000 shares, 99,870,000 shares were
held through physically settled derivatives (off exchange).

Of these 110,694,000 shares, 99,870,000 shares were held
through physically settled derivatives (off exchange).

As at the date of this report, Value Partners Group Limited and Value
Partners Hedge Master Fund Limited are no longer the substantial
shareholders of the Company.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, the Directors of
the Company were not aware of any other persons (other than the
directors of the Company whose interests are set out in the section
“Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short positions in
shares, underlying shares and debentures” above) who held any
interests or short positions in the shares, or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted on 23 May 2011 (the “Share
Option Scheme”) to provide incentives to eligible participants
(including employees, executives or officers, directors including
non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors,
advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and agents of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries) for their contribution to the long
term growth of the Group and to enable the Company to attract and
retain high calibre employees. During the year, no share options were
granted, exercised or cancelled by the Company under the Share
Option Scheme. There were no outstanding share options under the
Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2014.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of the executive directors (collectively the “Covenantors”) have
entered into a Deed of Non-Competition in favour of the Company
(on behalf of itself and the Group) dated 23 May 2011 (the “Deed”).
Pursuant to the Deed, each of the Covenantors shall procure that
their respective associates shall not directly or indirectly engage in
any business in competition with the existing business activity of
the Group. Relevant information on the Deed was disclosed in the
Prospectus in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders”.

The Company has received confirmations from the Covenantors
of their compliance with the terms of the Deed. The Covenantors
declared that they have fully complied with the Deed for the year
ended 31 December 2014. The independent non-executive
directors have reviewed on the confirmations from the Covenantors
and concluded that the Deed has been complied with and has been
effectively enforced.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group conducted the following non-exempt continuing

connected transactions during the year.

The table below sets out the annual caps and the actual transaction

amounts of those non-exempt continuing transactions in 2014:

Connected transactions
BERS

(A

Ningbo Storage Agreements

HEBRERRE

Pipe Racks Agreements
() Pipe Racks Services
Agreements

ERRHHE

(i) - Security Services
Agreement

&R ek

Renewed Office Lease Agreement

BEHRATHEDS

Connected person

BEAL

Ningbo Free Trade Zone Dragon
Crown Chemical International

Trade Company Ltd. (“Ningbo DC”)

ERRHEEAC TER
BB A ([E5EA))

ELSE
Nanjing Chemical Industry
Park Company Limited
(“Nanjing CIPC")
HREIXEARAR
([ERCIPC))
Nanjing Chemical Industry
Park Public Services Company
Limited (‘Nanjing CIPPS”)
AR BIXERRZEAR
EERE(TERCPPS])

Dragon Crown Investments Limited
(‘DC Investments’)
EMCIERERAR
(e IER])
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Annual cap Actual transaction amount
EEIR ERR S8

Approx. Approx.
g e
(RMB'000) (HK$'000) (RMB'000) (HK$'000)
(AR®TTT) (FEn)  (A\RETR) (F&7)
4174 5,254 3,39 4,904
11,423 14,378 11,300 14,223
763 960 763 960
12,186 15,338 12,063 15,183
1,494 1,494
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Ningbo Storage Agreements

On 3 December 2012, Ningbo Ningxiang and Ningbo DC
entered into the Ningbo Storage Agreement, pursuant to
which Ningbo Ningxiang agreed to provide Ningbo DC with
terminal and storage services at the Group’s terminal in
Ningbo. The term of the Ningbo Storage Agreement is for the
period of three years from 1 January 2013 to 31 December
2015.

On 16 July 2013, pursuant to the Ningbo Storage Agreement,
Ningbo Ningxiang and Ningbo DC entered into the Additional
Order for terminal and storage services for Methanol at
the Group’s terminal in Ningbo for the period from 16 July
2013 to 31 December 2015. In addition, three supplemental
agreements (the “Supplemental Agreements”) to the Ningbo
Storage Agreements were entered in between Ningbo
Ningxiang and Ningbo DC effective on 13 November 2013, 28
February 2014 and 13 June 2014, respectively, for terminal
and storage services for Methanol and all Supplemental
Agreements have been terminated on 11 January 2014, 29
March 2014 and 22 July 2014, respectively.

On 30 July 2014, pursuant to the Ningbo Storage Agreement,
Ningbo Ningxiang and Ningbo DC entered into a renewed
additional order (the “Renewed Additional Order”, together
with the Ningbo Storage Agreement, the Additional Order, the
Supplemental Agreements, the “Ningbo Storage Agreements”)
for terminal and storage services for Methanol at the Group’s
terminal in Ningbo for the period from 1 August 2014 to 31
December 2015. Pursuant to the Renewed Additional Order,
the Additional Order was terminated with effect from 1 August
2014,
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Ningbo DC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of DC Investments
which in turn is owned as to 98% by Mr. NG, a director and
a controlling shareholder. It is principally engaged in trading
of chemicals. According to the Listing Rules, Ningbo DC
is an associate of Mr. NG and thus a connected person.
As Ningbo DC is a connected person of the Company, the
Ningbo Storage Agreements constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Rule 14A.31 of the Listing
Rules.

The fees for the services provided are principally determined by
(i) the quantity of the liquid chemical products handled by the
Group; and (ji) the period for the storage of the liquid chemical
products at the terminal with reference to the market price.
The terms offered by Ningbo DC to Ningbo Ningxiang are no
less favourable than those offered by other Independent Third
Parties in the ordinary course of business.

Pipe Racks Agreements

The Group entered into the Pipe Racks Services Agreements
and the Security Services Agreement (collectively the “Pipe
Racks Agreements”), which constitute continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules. Pursuant to the Listing
Rules 14A.81 and 14A.82, the transactions under the Pipe
Racks Agreements and the annual cap amounts of the
transactions thereunder have been aggregated.
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In March 2007, the Group and Nanjing CIPC entered into
a pipe racks services agreement (the “Pipe Racks Services
Agreement”), pursuant to which Nanjing CIPC agreed to lease
to the Group the pipe racks for the Acetic Acid pipelines and
Methanol pipelines at the Nanjing Chemical Industry Park. The
Pipe Racks Services Agreement was supplemented by (i) a
supplemental agreement dated 28 September 2007, pursuant
to which Nanjing CIPC agreed to lease to the Group the pipe
racks for the Vinyl Acetate and Acetic Anhydride pipelines
at the Nanjing Chemical Industry Park; (i) a supplemental
agreement dated 12 October 2007, pursuant to which Nanjing
CIPC agreed to lease to the Group the pipe racks for the
Ethylene pipelines at the Nanjing Chemical Industry Park;
(iii) a supplemental agreement dated June 2008, pursuant
to which Nanjing CIPC agreed to lease to the Group the
pipe racks for the sub-pipelines of the Group connecting to
the pipelines of two customers of Celanese; (iv) the Fourth
Supplemental Pipe Racks Agreement entered into between
the Group and Nanjing CIPC on 3 December 2012, pursuant
to which Nanjing CIPC agreed to lease to the Group the
pipe racks for the Ethyl Acetate and Ethanol pipelines at the
Nanjing Chemical Industry Park. The Fourth Supplemental
Pipe Racks Agreement shall be with effect from 1 March 2013;
and (v) the Fifth Supplemental Pipe Racks Agreement entered
into between the Group and Nanjing CIPC in August 2013,
pursuant to which Nanjing CIPC agreed to lease the Group the
pipe racks for cryogenic ethylene at Nanjing Chemical Industry
Park. The Fifth Supplemental Pipe Racks Agreement was
effective from 1 October 2013 and was entered into to modify
the previous pipe racks agreements with an additional annual
cost of approximately RMB956,000 for renting additional pipe
racks. The Pipe Racks Services Agreements are for a period
of 15 years from 15 March 2007 to 14 March 2022 and can
be extended for a further five years upon expiry unless the
parties thereto terminate the Pipe Racks Services Agreements.
The fees payable for the pipe racks rental by the Group are
principally determined by the occupied area of pipelines in
the pipe racks rented to the Group by Nanjing CIPC subject
to adjustment with reference to bank lending interest rate,
consumer price index, inflation, etc.. The terms offered by
Nanjing CIPC to the Group are no less favourable than those
offered by other Independent Third Parties in the ordinary
course of business.
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In addition, in March 2007, the Group and Nanjing CIPPS,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Nanjing CIPC, entered into
a security services agreement (the “Security Services
Agreement”), pursuant to which Nanjing CIPPS agreed to
provide security services for the pipe racks rented by the
Group at the Nanjing Chemical Industry Park. Nanjing CIPPS
shall provide security, patrol and monitor services of the
Group’s pipelines at the Nanjing Chemical Industry Park. The
Security Services Agreement is for a period of 15 years from
15 March 2007 to 14 March 2022 and can be extended for
a further five years upon expiry unless the parties thereto
terminate the Security Services Agreements.

Nanjing CIPC is interested in 11.39% equity interest in Nanjing
Dragon Crown, which is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company. Nanjing CIPC is thus a connected person of the
Company solely by reason that it is a substantial shareholder
of Nanjing Dragon Crown. In addition, since Nanjing CIPPS
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Nanjing CIPC, it is thus a
connected person of the Company by reason that it is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Nanjing CIPC, a substantial
shareholder of Nanjing Dragon Crown.

As each of Nanjing CIPC and Nanjing CIPPS is a connected
person of the Company, each of the Pipe Racks Agreements
constitutes a continuing connected transaction of the
Company under Rule 14A.31 of the Listing Rules.

The fees payable for the security services by the Group under
the Security Services Agreement are principally determined by
the length of pipe racks at a maximum of 10 kilometres which
requires the provision of security services by Nanjing CIPPS.
The terms offered by Nanjing CIPPS to the Group are no less
favourable than those offered by other Independent Third
Parties in the ordinary course of business.
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(C) Renewed Office Lease Agreement

On 3 December 2012, the Renewed Office Lease Agreement
was entered into between DC Investments as landlord and
the Group as tenant in respect of the premises located at Unit
No. 3 on the 18th Floor of Convention Plaza, Office Tower,
No. 1 Harbour Road, Hong Kong, with a gross floor area of
approximately 2,227 square feet for a fixed term of three years
from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2015. The property is
currently occupied by the Group for office use.

The annual rent payable to DC Investments was determined at
arm'’s length negotiation between the parties to the Renewed
Office Lease Agreement with reference to the valuation made
by the independent property valuer of the Company, Savills
Valuation and Professional Services Limited, and the previous
transaction between the parties.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have,
for the purpose of Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, reviewed
the continuing connected transactions set out above and have
confirmed that these continuing connected transactions have been
entered into by the Group (i) in the ordinary and usual course of
its business; (i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from independent
third parties; and (jii) in accordance with the terms of the agreements
governing such transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Company’s shareholders as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
auditors were engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditors have not qualified its report in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above by the Group. A copy of
the auditor’s letter confirming the matters set out under Rule 14A.56
of the Listing Rules has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The details of the related party transactions are set out in note 35 to
the financial statements.

The Company confirms that in relation to the related party
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2014, it has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this report, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS
Ernst & Young will retire and a resolution for their reappointment as

auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

By order of the Board

Ng Wai Man
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2015
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Independent Auditors’ Report
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF DRAGON CROWN GROUP
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dragon
Crown Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 52 to 137, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as
at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2014, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

22/F CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

24 March 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

= AN 18 3L
%’: (=] ?Eﬁﬁ%%
Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F 12 A3 HILFE

REVENUE A
Cost of services provided TR AR IE A AR
Gross profit EF
Other income A
Administrative expenses THAX
Finance costs BhE AN
Share of profits and losses of: FE(G &= A R B 1A -
Associates NS
Joint ventures AEPE
PROFIT BEFORE TAX RRBE AR R
Tax T8
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEREA
Attributable to: AR AT e -
Owners of the Company RARER A
Non-controlling interests FEIE
EARNINGS PER SHARE BAREEBA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO iR EF (BL)
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
(HK cents)
Basic BN

Details of the dividends proposed for the year are disclosed in note
14 to the financial statements.
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Notes
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2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TR
261,574 270,020
(112,059) (108,142)
149,515 161,878
8,431 12,987
(45,425) (34,240)
(4,367) (3,274)
(529) 409
6,495 6,325
114,120 144,085
(20,910) (25,778)
93,210 118,307
80,933 104,234
12,277 14,073
93,210 118,307
7.29 9.89
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Other comprehensive income
to be reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods:

Share of other comprehensive
income/(loss) of associates:
Changes in exchange reserve

Share of other comprehensive
income/(loss) of joint ventures:
Changes in exchange reserve

Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Note
FaE

FREF

HitZHE WA

RRBEHRRER S EE
Bz EmEEPA

AR A A
R AR (B8) -
4 G )

iR R i 3:0
Hi2EBA(EE) :
I S et

BEIGINETGH
PEHERR

FREE
LNt

AT AL FEG ¢
RAREB A 13
FEPE AR RS

AREZHEBER

Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F 12 A3 HILFE

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THT
93,210 118,307

(506) 592

(617) 676
(20,844) 21,961
(21,967) 23,229
71,243 141,536
60,872 125,569
10,371 15,967
71,243 141,536
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e Mg R &R
31 December 2014
2014412 A 31 H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid land lease payments
Gooadwill

Investments in associates
Investments in joint ventures
Prepayments

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Accounts receivable

Prepayments, deposits
and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables and accruals
Interest-bearing bank loans
Tax payable

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Interest-bearing bank loans
Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

NET ASSETS

FRBEE
E T E
B TimES

FREBEERE

RBEE

&

FEM R K

BN BE R
HL A & YRR

RelBREEHED
mBEERE

REAE

LA A5 SRR e BT B A
FHRERITER
FEFTEIR

mBRERE
REBEEFE
REERABAE

FRBEE
FHRERITER
EEFBRE

FFRBAERE
BEEFE
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Notes

Bt

16
17
18
20
21
23

22

23
24

26

26
27

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TR
766,286 753,710
40,548 42,580
1,210 1,210
19,389 20,424
27,467 27,729

- 10,618
854,900 856,271
3,241 3,623
32,022 45,633
3,652 3,040
322,550 320,455
361,465 372,751
71,535 57,768
90,798 14,167
1,420 4,825
163,753 76,760
197,712 295,991
1,052,612 1,152,262
42,500 134,868
5,083 5,899
47,583 140,767
1,005,029 1,011,495




EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company

Issued share capital

Reserves

Proposed final dividends

Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY

Ng Wai Man
RER
Director

EE

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R
RATRERA
PEfL R R

B BTN
Edi]
EEARHBE

FFERER
EEAE

Notes

M aE

28
30(a)
14

Ting Yian Ann
RE=
Director

EZE

AN
wh 9

B ISR AR

31 December 2014
201412 A31H

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TR
110,966 110,966
785,851 789,463
42,167 42,167
938,984 942,596
66,045 68,899
1,005,029 1,011,495
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERgER

Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F 12 A3 HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FOTER\RERE
Exchange Proposed
Issued Reserve fluctuation final Non-
capital Sharg fnds*  Capital  reserve  Refained dividends controlling Total

BEG premium BE  orsene EXEE  pofts  EERE Total  iterests  equily
B RERE B4+ EABE B RER ke B FehER  ERNE
Note  HKS000  HKSO0D  HKS000  HKSO0D  HKS000  HKSO0D  HKS000  HKSO0D  HKS000  HKS000
i T fRR TEn TEm TER T T TR TR AR
(note 30(alil) (note 30(al) (note 30(ai)
(6 S0 (RS S0(al) (5 S0l

At January 2014 RNUETF1R 10966 431,509 10,250 2052 108604 216,148 Q@167 942,5% 68899 1,011,495
Proftfor the year g - - - - - W SO 1 IS [
Othercomprehensive ncome o e year: EREfRENA -

Shre o changesnexchange EfBenan

resee of assocates EffiEsy - - - . (506) - - (506) - [50g)

S of changes nexchange Eiiagts

resene o it venues HERRERY - - - - 617) - - 1] - 61

Exchenge iferences on tansaon of RERNZRN

foreign operations EizE - - - - (189% - - (180 (198 (084
Totd comprfinsie icomelfosg oreyear ~ ERZERI/(BE) 48 - - - - looe)  809R SR/ K I
Appropriaion o stauoryresene AoieRE - -1 - - 12 - (24 124 -
Fina 2013 ividends pad ER20ERERS - - - - - - (e (ten - (e
Dhicends declyred onon-contoling meress S E AR ER 258 - - - - - - - - (139 (13349
Infein 2014 ividends N4ERERE 1 - - - - - 2% - 219 - 2%
Poposed e 2014 i BENUERERR i - - - - R X/ - - -
At 31 December 2014 RO0MEDAA 10966 4o1500%  11346% 292" G854 291400 42067 038984 66,045 1,005,029
. * ZERBEDERABERAIREGE

The reserve funds include the share of reserves of associates and

S g = :
joint ventures of HK$4,355,000 (2013: HK$4,223,000). & X # f# #54,355,0007% (20134

4,223,000 7T) °

* ZEREREESRAVBRKARAMN
434 5 785,851,000/8 7L (20134 :
789,463,000/87T) °

*k

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
HK$785,851,000 (2013: HK$789,463,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F 12 A3 HILFE

Attioutable fo owners of the Company

FOARBARK
Bxchange Proposed
Issued Resere flctuation fing Non-
capial Share finds'  Captd  resene  Refaed  cividends cortroling Total

BEfT premium B oeew  EZRD o BERE Tl leests ey
BE ROEE B EAER B RO fie B ihER  RRUE
Note HKSO00  HKS000  HKSOO0  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOD  HKSOOD  HKSOD  HKSO0
W At TRt TR TR TRt TEr TR TR TR TEn
(note: 30} (note 30 (note 30l
(HEs0mn) (s0mn) (B s0am)

=

At Janury 2013 RO3E1R 1A 1096 431509 9052 2.%2 8§29 177609 61081 900,388 58221 968,609
Prot for the e ERgH - - - - S 0423 1073 11837
Othercomprehensive income o e year: EREf2EA -
e of changes nexchange EiBe0an
resanz0f assciies EREERD - - - - 5 - - W - 5
Sre of changes nexchange Eliaets
resere of ot ventures HERRERD - - - - 676 - - 676 - 676
Exchenge ifeences on fanston RERIERE
of foreign opertons EizE - - - - - nET 18 1%
Totd comprehensie income for e year EREENALE - - - T 1 - IBEY 1A% 145%
Appropriaion fostauoryresene A5teRE - 1198 - - (1% - (137 197 -
Foel 2012 e e B ERERS - - - - - T I T
Dhicends declred onon-controling meress —~ EFZ AR ER ZRE - - - - - - - - (559 (55
Captal contbuton fom non-contoling neress A4 = - - - - - - - 109 10169
e 2013 diends Ty ERe 1 - - - - - - ny ]
Proposed el 2013 s BRNnERERE M - - - - A A - - -
At31 December 2013 RO03E12531H 1096 431500 10260" 22062 108604 26148 42067 %259 08399 101149
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

=AN =B
GEHERER
Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F 12 A3 HILFE

CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Bank interest income
Depreciation
Amortisation of prepaid
land lease payments
Loss on disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment
Share of profits and losses of:
Associates
Joint ventures

Decrease in inventories

Decrease/(increase) in accounts receivable

Increase in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables

Increase/(decrease) in other
payables and accruals

Cash generated from operations
Tax paid

Net cash flows from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of items
of property, plant and equipment
Interest received
Dividends received
Decrease/(increase) in time deposits
with original maturity of over
three months when acquired

Net cash flows used in
investing activities

Notes
Bt
RETHELE
ZEERE
BRA AT A
FLA N BIEAE
BERA 8
RITHEUMA 7
e 9
ARttt
e HH 9
LEME - BB
R IE E B R 9

FEAE T 512 M K 518
ik /NC]

BERE

FERD

FEAR TR A, (42 00)

BN 'E MEAME
WERIEE N

LA A R0R N e AT
BREMCRd)

REMSRE
EEA

RETPMFRSNEFE

REZRHEE
ZHRERE
BEVE BE
RiBAE
HEWE - MELREBERE
PSSR 3
REE)s)

B S
RUEERRER B EE
=AAZEHFR

B, ()

RERGMA

REREFR

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited sE&EEZERARA A

24

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT T
114,120 144,085
4,367 3,274
(7,055) (5,966)
46,145 40,484
995 998
186 31
529 (409)
(6,495) (6,325)
152,792 176,172
295 943
12,586 (4,267)
(666) (9,028)
(5,335) 4,488
159,672 168,308
(24,822) (26,427)
134,850 141,881
(60,089) (140,510)
- 77
7,055 5,966
6,130 6,160
19,557 (38,421)
(27,347) (166,728)




CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Capital contribution from
non-controlling interests

Repayment of bank loans

New bank loans

Dividends paid

Dividends paid to
non-controlling interests

Interest paid

Net cash flows from/(used in)
financing activities

NET INCREASE IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

Time deposits with
original maturity of less than three
months when acquired

Cash and cash equivalents

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows - 9°

Notes

M aE

BMEETBHEEZ
REnE
ESEE g Stk

BEBITER
FTIBIRTTE R
2R

ST IRER
Bl )
ERHE
BMERBPTS,(FTFA)
REREFE
RERREEEY
1R

RENZ RS
BB EEY
R
R R
REXZRE
RRSLEY

HeRESEEY

HEER DT

e RIRITHEER 24
R B R R TE EI HA B
PR=MEAHZ

JE B 5K 24

B MREEHEY

2 AN D g — 1 | &
FERERER
Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F 12 A3 HILFE

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx Tt
- 10,169
(14,167) (16,573)
- 152,446
(64,360) (83,224)
- (20,175)
(4,367) (3,274)
(82,894) 39,369
24,609 14,522
282,034 265,715
(2,957) 1,797
303,686 282,034
110,718 101,007
192,968 181,027
303,686 282,034
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Statement of Financial Position

AR R TR
31 December 2014
2014412 A 31 H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investments in subsidiaries

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables and accruals

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS
NET ASSETS

EQUITY

Issued share capital
Reserves

Proposed final dividends

TOTAL EQUITY

Ng Wai Man
RER
Director

EF

Notes
B sE
kRBEE
KB A R E 19
EMBNE EME
RBEE
R - ek
H At EUGRIR 23
ReRReEEY 24
mENEEAE
=R
HAb T FRIE
KERTE A 25
mEaEaeE
REBEEFRE
EEFE
Ex
BT 28
it 30(b)
BEARE 14
EREE
Ting Yian Ann
RER
Director
EE

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited sE&EEZERARA A

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THT
245,438 258,106
245,438 258,106
313,931 260,869
114,914 146,401
428,845 407,270
23,635 18,249
23,635 18,249
405,210 389,021
650,648 647,127
110,966 110,966
497,515 493,994
42,167 42,167
650,648 647,127




2.1

Notes to Financial Statements

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated on 16 July 2010 as an
exempted company with limited liability under Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands. The address of its registered
office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The address of
its principal place of business in Hong Kong is Unit No.3, 18th
Floor, Convention Plaza, Office Tower, No.1 Harbour Road,
Hong Kong. The Group is principally engaged in terminal
storage and handling of liquid chemicals.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the ultimate
holding company of the Company is Lirun Limited, which is
a limited liability company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI”).

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance relating to the preparation
of financial statements, which for this financial year and the
comparative period continue to be those of the predecessor
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), in accordance
with transitional and saving arrangements for Part 9 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), “Accounts and
Audit”, which are set out in sections 76 to 87 of Schedule
11 to that Ordinance. The financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

2.1

BA RS SRR M

31 December 2014
201412 A31H
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Notes to Financial Statements

B AR MY R

31 December 2014
2014412 A 31 H

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2014. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control described in
the accounting policy for subsidiaries below. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii)
the fair value of any investment retained and (jii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited sE&EEZERARA A
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Notes to Financial Statements - %

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised standards
and new interpretation for the first time for the current year’s
financial statements:

Amendments to Investment Entities
HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011)

Amendments to Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
HKAS 32 Liabilities

Amendments to Novation of Derivatives and Continuation
HKAS 39 of Hedge Accounting

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies

Amendments Definition of Veesting Condition '
to HKFRS 2
included in Annual
Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle

Amendments Accounting for Contingent Consideration
to HKFRS 3 in a Business Combination '
included in Annual
Improvements

2010-2012 Cycle

Amendments Short-term Receivables and Payables
to HKFRS 13
included in Annual
Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle

Amendments Meaning of Effective HKFRSs
to HKFRS 1
included in Annual
Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle

U Effective from 1 July 2014

2.2

MBwRME A7

31 December 2014
201412 A31H
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Notes to Financial Statements

B AR MY R

31 December 2014
2014412 A 31 H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

Other than explained below, the adoption of the above revised

standards and interpretation has had no significant financial

effect on these financial statements.

(@)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 include a definition of an
investment entity and provide an exception to the
consolidation requirement for entities that meet the
definition of an investment entity. Investment entities
are required to account for subsidiaries at fair value
through profit or loss rather than consolidate them.
Consequential amendments were made to HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 (2011).The amendments to HKFRS 12
also set out the disclosure requirements for investment
entities. The amendments have had no impact on
the Group as the Company does not qualify as an
investment entity as defined in HKFRS 10.

The HKAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning of
“currently has a legally enforceable right to set off” for
offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities. The
amendments also clarify the application of the offsetting
criteria in HKAS 32 to settlement systems (such as
central clearing house systems) which apply gross
settlement mechanisms that are not simultaneous. The
amendments have had no impact on the Group as the
Group does not have any offsetting arrangement.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited sE&EEZERARA A
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(©)

The HKAS 39 Amendments provide an exception to
the requirement of discontinuing hedge accounting
in situations where over-the-counter derivatives
designated in hedging relationships are directly or
indirectly, novated to a central counterparty as a
consequence of laws or regulations, or the introduction
of laws or regulations. For continuance of hedge
accounting under this exception, all of the following
criteria must be met: (i) the novations must arise
as a consequence of laws or regulations, or the
introduction of laws or regulations; (i) the parties to the
hedging instrument agree that one or more clearing
counterparties replace their original counterparty to
become the new counterparty to each of the parties; and
(iii) the novations do not result in changes to the terms
of the original derivative other than changes directly
attributable to the change in counterparty to achieve
clearing. The amendments have had no impact on the
Group as the Group has not novated any derivatives
during the current and prior years.

The HKFRS 3 Amendment clarifies that contingent
consideration arrangements arising from a business
combination that are not classified as equity should be
subsequently measured at fair value through profit or
loss whether or not they fall within the scope of HKFRS 9
or HKAS 39. The amendment has had no impact on the
Group.

The HKFRS 13 Amendment clarifies that short-term
receivables and payables with no stated interest rates
can be measured at invoice amounts when the effect of
discounting is immaterial. The amendment has had no
impact on the Group.
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31 December 2014
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Notes to Financial Statements

B AR MY R

31 December 2014
2014412 A 31 H

2.3 NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND NEW DISCLOSURE

REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

23 HRFMOMITREBITFTLEME
BEEARFELAFGANHEE
BME

REEW BN ZEMEHRRARAT
I AR 1B 1 R AR 2 # /] AR IERT

these financial statements.

HKFRS 9

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to
HKFRS 11

HKFRS 14

HKFRS 15

Amendments to
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 38

Amendments to
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 41

Amendments to
HKAS 19

Amendments to
HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 1
Amendments

HKFRS 10, HKFRS
12 and HKAS
28 (2011)
Amendments

Annual
Improvements

2010-2012 Cycle

Annual
Improvements

2011-2013 Cycle

Annual
Improvements

2012-2014 Cycle

Financial Instruments #

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture @

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests
in Joint Operations ?

Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers®

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of

Depreciation and Amortisation?

Agriculture: Bearer Plants 2

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions !

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements 2

Disclosure Initiative ?

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception?

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs''

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs '

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs ?

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited sE&EEZERARA A
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.3 NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND NEW DISCLOSURE

REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED
(continued)

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017

- Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018

2 Effective for an entity that first adopts HKFRSs for its annual
financial statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016
and therefore is not applicable to the Group

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial
application. The Group is not yet in a position to state whether
they would have a significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position.

In addition, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)
will affect the presentation and disclosure of certain information
in the consolidated financial statements for the year ending
31 December 2015. The Group is the process of making an
assessment of the impact of these changes.
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31 December 2014
201412 A31H
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Notes to Financial Statements

B AR MY R

31 December 2014
2014412 A 31 H

68

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation either at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value either recognised in profit
or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the
contingent consideration is not within the scope of HKAS 39,
it is measured in accordance with the appropriate HKFRS.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in the statement
of profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured
based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@ the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(o)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of profit or loss to the extent of dividends received
and receivable. The Company’s investments in subsidiaries
that are not classified as held for sale in accordance with
HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are stated at cost less any impairment losses.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
the Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses. The Group’s share
of the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive
income of associates and joint ventures is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there
has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the
associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of
any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its associates or
joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
investments in the associates or joint ventures, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
associates or joint ventures is included as part of the Group’s
investments in associates or joint ventures.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an
asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in
the period in which it arises.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset or
as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings and structures 3.17%-19%
Motor vehicles 19%
Office equipment 19%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
period the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

Construction in progress represents the infrastructure of a
terminal under construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the
direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on
related borrowed funds during the period of construction.

Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included in
non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to the statement of profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group
is the lessee, rental payables under operating leases net of
any incentives received from the lessor are charged to the
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as loans
and receivables. The Group determines the classification of
its financial assets at initial recognition. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets, except in the case of financial assets recorded
at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in other income
and gains in the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising
from impairment is recognised in the statement of profit or loss
in finance costs for loans and in other operating expenses for
receivables.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists
for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant
or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues
to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment
of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred). The present value
of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (that is, the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be
accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using
the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for
the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are written
off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and
all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the
Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or decreased
by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to the statement of profit or
loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised (ie. removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(@) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited sE&EEZERARA A

FEEHBREE(E)

THMEENRE(E)
BE RS R B ()

EEERBEAREBREER
REERBEZ R E 2 S 1FMIE I
gomd o QB BREBERESE - B
SR O HERHRERER © WX EIR
Yl - AW E S ET AR

HHRATREE

ETIBERT  SBUEEREME
o (EE) —HeRmEEN—
NER—ABRUEBEEN—F D (A
RAREGAMBEARRAKRGR) -

e MENEEMSRERENE
AMEER X

s ARECEERHUEREEM
BRENEREN - HRE [
B 2 ABRERNERMFASR
=HEE Y@ AEEREE
BE M — Y [E ¥R N g 48 KB
7 2 (b) N BT B TN R
REEEBRE D @R KR
k2 - BEEREEMNZEHIE -



Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the
Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities which include other payables and accruals,
and interest-bearing bank loans are initially stated at fair value
and net of directly attributable transaction costs. After initial
recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.

Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (continued)

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there is currently an enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits and asset similar in nature to cash,
which are not restricted as to use.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited sE&£EEZERARA A

FEEHBREE(E)

BBERATENERAE(E)

WIRB T BAEHR—REAAERK
BRTRMNEERDRN  HREEE
MRRIELERER @ IHERBRSE
A1 AR A BUB FER R B & S R
BERE  AEEREENEZERER
KPR o

TR T ANIKE

i 7 B BB Al T A ERERNIIR S E A
REBWRIDFREELE - HFAK
HEEENMBEARGR  SRMEER
TRBETSEARE  YERARM
BN R A SAFRRTITR

RERBRESEEY

BEERERERMNE  RehRe
EEYVEBEFERSMEREFT - AU
NABRERSEHNSENIRE - R
BSREREBEZHEARA —REE
FRA=ZEANISNESARRANT
BRE - BMARBRBEELBRAE
B3R S EIREKE O MIRITIES

RMBIRRAKRNE - RERREHE
W EBE T ZERR G FERE IR
THE(BREMERMERSHE
BLUNEE) -



Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Inventories

Inventories represent consumables, tools and parts for use
in the operation, and are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out
basis. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices
less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the regions in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of each reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised, to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be

measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@ from the rendering of services, when the services have
been rendered;

(b) rental income, on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms;
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset; and

(d) income from arbitration, when the legal rights has been
established and collectability is reasonably ascertained.

Other employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which operates in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. The
subsidiary is required to contribute a certain percentage of its
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is also the Company’s functional currency. Each entity
in the Group determines its own functional currency and
items included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of each reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item
(i.e., translation differences on the item whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss, respectively).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures are currencies other than the Hong Kong
dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into the presentation
currency of the Company at the exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period and their statements of
profit or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the
closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of those entities comprising the Group in which
their functional currencies are currencies other than the Hong
Kong dollar are translated into the presentation currency of the
Company at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of those entities which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHREBEZ)
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties AL
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: ETINERT - BREAF KA R/RRE
O RAESE A 1
(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s @ ABEZIR—BALTHZALTZ
family and that person: BEREREKE - Mz AT
() has control or joint control over the Group; (i) | S R AR E
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or iy HAEBEERTE =
(i)  is a member of the key management personnel of (iy AAEBENAEELTAF]
the Group or of a parent of the Group; MNEZERAE ©
or %
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following b)) BFEARERE MAENATKE
conditions applies: -
()  the entity and the Group are members of the same () ZRERBHEASEBR-—%
group; BKE QR
(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the (i) HEBRS BEBNEE
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow AR EERHE(KZE
subsidiary of the other entity); BHEARE - fBARK
EESEhyEEpANGT
(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the (i) ZERBRAEEG/R-—
same third party; FE=FMAEERE
(v)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the vy ZEBRF=FTEBNEG
other entity is an associate of the third entity; B MAE BB AZ
FE=HEREREE AR
(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for v) ZmEEREEREMNEE -
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an ZETEN X m A BAEE
entity related to the Group; SEAREEAHNEER
EE :
(v  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (vi) ZERBX(a )FﬁE‘E‘kBUAi*
person identified in (a); and Hilgk =2 L REE S
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b)  (continued)

(vii)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as
a separate allocation of retained profits within the equity
section of the statement of financial position, until they have
been approved by the shareholders in a general meeting or
in the case of subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”), by the board of directors. When these dividends have
been approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Dividends (continued)

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities, at the end of each reporting period.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, apart from
those involving estimations, which has the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Income taxes

Significant management judgements on the future tax
treatment of certain transactions are required in determining
income tax provisions. The Group carefully evaluates tax
implications of transactions and tax provisions are set up
accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is
reconsidered periodically to take into account all changes in
tax legislation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial period, are described below.

Usetul lives of property, plant and equipment

The cost of property, plant and equipment is depreciated on
the straight-line basis over the property, plant and equipment’s
estimated economic useful lives. Management estimates the
useful lives of the property, plant and equipment to be five to
thirty years. Changes in the expected level of usage and/or
the period over which future economic benefits are generated
could impact the economic useful lives of the assets and,
therefore, future depreciation charges could be revised.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for
impairment annually and at other times when such an indicator
exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. An impairment arises when the carrying value
of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value
less costs of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposal of the asset. When value in use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected future
cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2014 was
HK$1,210,000 (2013: HK$1,210,000). Further details are
given in note 18 to the financial statements.

Impairment of accounts receivable

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a receivable is
impaired. To determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment, the Group considers factors such as the
probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties
of the debtor and default or significant delay in payments.
Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the amount
and timing of future cash flows are estimated based on
historical loss experience for assets with similar credit risk
characteristics.

The Group maintains an allowance for estimated impairment of
accounts receivable arising from the inability of its debtors to
make the required payments. The Group makes its estimates
based on the ageing of its trade receivable balances, debtors’
creditworthiness, past repayment history and historical write-
off experience. If the financial condition of its debtors was to
deteriorate so that the actual impairment loss might be higher
than expected, the Group would be required to revise the basis
of making the allowance. The carrying amount of accounts
receivable at 31 December 2014 was HK$32,022,000 (2013:
HK$45,633,000). Further details are given in note 22 to the
financial statements.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

No separate analysis of segment information is presented by
the Group as over 90% of the Group’s revenue, results and
assets are related to the terminal storage and handling of liquid
chemicals business in Mainland China.

Revenue from a major customer, whose entities below are
within the same group, in aggregate amounted to 10% or more

#ESBRHE

MR AEEEB 0% NUA - EE R
BERABNTEAARCEROE
SRR MRS - RAKREL
B2 BER BN

KEBARERALER10% A LY
T2RP(BR—%E)NRAZEI

of the Group’s revenue, is set out below: T

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FET
Customer A ZE A 103,238 112,392
Customer B =F B 101,123 87,144
Customer C =FC 23,180 22,978
Customer D ZFED 20,961 12,012
248,502 234,526

REVENUE A

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the
net invoiced value of services rendered for terminal storage
and the handling of liquid chemicals during the year, after
business tax and value-added tax.

OTHER INCOME

An analysis of the Group’s other income is as follows:

WA - BIRKENERE  BRAF
JE MH) R B8 AL 2 M O S SR (R 7 A R 1
R ARG 1 B RIFE (RHBR & XM

FIBERIK) -

Hti A

REEEMBBADHT

2014 2013

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHBT T

Bank interest income SRITH B U 7,055 5,966
Gross rental income He WALz 661 529
Income from arbitration* R B REEI A * - 5,889
Others HAfb 715 603
8,431 12,987

*

The balance for the year ended 31 December 2013
represented the amount received, net of expense, in relation
to an arbitration case against a debtor.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited sE&£EEZERARA A
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8.

FINANCE COSTS

Interest on bank loans wholly
repayable within five years

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Notes to Financial Statements

BARAFATHREER
RITEFRHFE

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

Depreciation

Amortisation of prepaid
land lease payments

Minimum lease payments
under operating leases of
office premises and pipe racks

Auditors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration

Staff costs (excluding directors’
remuneration):
Wages, salaries and other benefits
Pension scheme contributions™

Gross rental income
Less: Outgoings

Loss on disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment
Foreign exchange differences, net

Notes

B aE

e 16
A LS

B2 5 17
MAEMER

ERICETL

M RIEAEMNK
BTN &
EEME 10
BINA(TRIE
EEH2)

ITE - #ie kEAMET
RIKEETEIf

HE2 WAL 7
S E

HEME - BER
RiBRE B8
PEHERE - FE

* As at 31 December 2014, the Group had no forfeited
contribution available to reduce its contributions to the

pension schemes in future years.

AR SRR M

31 December 2014
201412 A31H

MERE
Group
rEH
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FATT
4,367 3,274
FRiRanaF

AEBSOBRBARMNEMG (5
A

2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEx AT
46,145 40,484
995 998
15,528 13,615
1,105 1,060
6,885 7,773
21,388 19,345
4,197 3,719
25,585 23,064
(661) (529)
33 26
(628) (503)
186 31
5,354 (5,935)

* MR2014F12 A31 B » AEE I &
RIRGR AR R E R BB D H
RIRSETEIGER -
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR AR MY R

31 December 2014
20144912 A 31 H

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

10.

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and
section 78 of Schedule 11 to the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance (Cap. 622), with reference to section 161 of the

predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), is

as follows:

Fees
— Executive directors
— Independent non-executive directors
Other emoluments of executive directors:
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind
Pension scheme contributions

2014

Executive directors: NTES
Mr. Ng Wai Man RERLE
Mr. Ting Yian Ann BREREE
Mr. Chong Yat Chin HRE%E
Ms. Chan Wan Ming BBt

W
~HITEE
—BSIHHITES

HITEFEMH

e R REYREF

RIRSFH IR

ESHe

BREBBBEZIAERAAFS
LR EmRA) REB R 5
Bl (56 622 F ) Fi1 5% 11 28 78 {5 22 BR A
SEBRRNED (5 32F) 5 161 15FT

BENFANESHST ¢
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
540 540
6,311 7,203
34 30
6,885 7,773

Salaries,
allowances Pension

and benefits scheme Total

Fees inkind contributions remuneration
=41 Bihg

e  REWEF SRR B

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TET TER TR

- 390 - 390

- 3,149 - 3,149

- 1,365 17 1,382

- 1,407 17 1,424

- 6,311 34 6,345

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited sE&£EEZERARA A
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31 December 2014
201412 A31H

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 10. EEM& (E)
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind  contributions  remuneration
E2 = il
e  REWE7 AHEIfER el
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT AT AT AT
2013
Executive directors: HITES
Mr. Ng Wai Man REREHE - 935 - 935
Mr. Ting Yian Ann BEREE - 3,434 - 3,434
Mr. Chong Yat Chin AL - 1,474 15 1,489
Ms. Chan Wan Ming Br=BaL - 1,360 15 1,375
- 7,203 30 7,233
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors of the FEARRNARBYIEHTEE ST 2
Company during the year were as follows: WEWR -
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx THT
Mr. Lau Sik Yuen BISHIR A& 240 240
Mr. Luo Shijie SRittREd A 150 150
Mr. Zhu Wujun ENEWE s 150 150
540 540

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
non-executive directors during the year (2013: Nil)

Save as disclosed above, no remuneration was paid or
payable by the Group to directors of the Company during the
year (2013: Nil).

FRNRERNB LI ENTESEME
B (20134 : &)

Br EXATIREESN - ARBRFAIL
BEEMENKENARRESNHE

(20134

tE) o
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Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2014
2014412 A 31 H

10.

11.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

No remuneration was paid or payable by the Group to the
directors of the Company as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office during
the year (2013: Nil).

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2013: Nil).

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included three
(2013: three) directors, details of whose remuneration are set
out in note 10 above. Details of the remuneration for the year
of the remaining two (2013: two) highest paid employees who
are not directors of the Company, are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind

Pension scheme contributions RREFTEIHR

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following band is as follows:

HK$1,000,001 to
HK$1,500,000

1,000,001 & TE
1,500,000 77T

No remuneration was paid or payable by the Group to the
five highest paid employees as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office during
the year (2013: Nil).

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited 3Ef&EREIERAER AT

10.

11.

e RRMEEMET

EEMe (&)

FA - AEBEWEEM D RENAR
RAEENME  (FANMALEH
AN B B Y RS S AF R BB A (B
(20134 : &) o

RAFEER - HEESHEXFRENR
REAMEE L (2013F : &) o

IEEmFHFHES

RAFERAREESFMERRIE=
FREF(2013F : =8) - HF M=
BEER EXMEE10 - £R T4 (2013
FMB)AFARAEENRSH
e B evsr = B s T

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET
2,352 2,395

17 15

2,369 2,410

N T NI SBERIFEE K= M
EENZBLT

Number of employees

BENHE
2014 2013
2 2

RNEBRAEEAL ETAE N RE
NREZZaFHHESNMS - fEAM
AR DA ZR 52 (B B A 285 ok o Bk
E(2013F : &) -



12.

Notes to Financial Statements

INCOME TAX

Current — Hong Kong BER — &4
Charge for the year REFZ M
Overprovision in prior years A FE RS

BIEA— HAtbih 75

Current — Elsewhere

Charge for the year REFZ M
Underprovision in prior years FEERETE

Deferred — note 27 IEIE—Ki5E27

Total tax charge for the year

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2013: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year.

Taxes on profits assessable in Mainland China have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in Mainland China
in which the Group operates, based on existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

Under the new PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law and its
Implementation Rules (effective from 1 January 2008), the
PRC Enterprise Income Tax rates for domestic and foreign-
invested enterprises are unified at 25%. The other major
tax concessions applicable to the Group’s Mainland China
subsidiary are detailed below.

Pursuant to the tax document Guoshui Han 2007 No. 2
“Approval on Enterprise Income Tax” issued by the national tax
authority of Nanjing City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC, Nanjing
Dragon Crown Liquid Chemical Terminal Company Limited, a
subsidiary of the Group, is entitled to preferential tax treatment
with full tax exemption from PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”)
for the first five profitable years, commencing from 1 January
2007, and thereafter is entitled to a 50% deduction in the EIT
rate for the subsequent five years. The Group’s assessable
income was subject to an EIT rate of 12.5% for the year ended
31 December 2014 (2013: 12.5%)).

REFBIA AR

PR AR BT AE

31 December 2014
201412 A31H

12. Fifd#R

Group

A5EH
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT AT
33 20
(10) (10)
15,989 19,429
- 320
4,898 6,019
20,910 25,778

EBFNEHEEANEERNRBBEL
B 5T FERR RS A 16.5% (20134 :
16.5% ) HoFi K1 4E5 o

7 g [ o B P A 4 19 0 FE SR
HRERERITAR  RRRES -
4270 B M 3R TR £ BB -

BIRFT P BB EFEREREE MK
B (B2008%1B1HEER)  RE
RONEDERNT BB EMBHTER
—R25% ° iE FA R 2N 5 [ R B P b Bt
BARKEMEZHIBRER T X

i o

B Y5 A BT 8% & B = h BB B AR 1 &Y
TS S BRI FR 2007 25k [ BIN 2
FIEfRmER ] AEEHBARM
REMRECIHERERRARE
BEIHBFH - 1R2007F181H
REE T &N S E ] FA S R B 1 ZE AT
SR EEMEHR]) HeRFa=
BEMSHBEXRRY  -ASEHZE
2014 12 A 31 B I FE R ER T U
ANBIRBEFTERE12.5% (2013
& 12.5%) T »
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31 December 2014
20144912 A 31 H

12. INCOME TAX (continued) 12. FR8R(2)
BARNE NEWE A REAER
KA E TR R E B i AR BR A a F
RIS B AR B BERH R E

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax using the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the
Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax position

98

at the Group’s effective tax rate is as follows:

HABLR ST SRR T -

Group - 2014 REE—2014F
Mainland
Hong Kong China Total
& HEKE wEt
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000
FER FER FExT
Profit/(loss) before tax BREATR A, (E18) (10,749) 124,869 114,120
Tax at the applicable tax rates ZEABEGTERNTIE (1,774) 31,217 29,443
Lower tax rate due to concession ARERSHE T - (15,881)  (15,881)
Income not subject to tax BAEFRBBA (2,197) - (2,197)
Expense not deductible for tax AT HIF B B 2 871 653 1,524
Tax loss utilised EFATIAREE (126) - (126)
Tax loss not recognised RERKTIBEE 3,259 - 3,259
Adjustments in respect of current B BN EF A
tax of previous year 2 (10) - (10)
Effect of withholding tax on ZNE5 [ R B P /B
the distributable AR BERRR
profits of the Group’s A EBER A
Mainland China subsidiary, s Al B TR0 B 2o 22
associates and joint ventures - 4,898 4,898
Tax charge for the year RNEFERIAR X 23 20,887 20,910

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited sE&£EEZERARA A
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AR SRR M

31 December 2014
201412 A31H

12. INCOME TAX (continued) 12. FRf8R(2)
Group - 2013 EE—2013F
Mainland
Hong Kong China Total
A HBIARE #Et

HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
TR TR TR

Profit/(loss) before tax BB ATLRT](EE) (1,669) 145,754 144,085
Tax at the applicable tax rates RERABEGTERNTIE (275) 36,439 36,164
Lower tax rate due to concession HRERSTHETE - (17,359) (17,359)
Income not subject to tax BEFRBA (1,848) (14) (1,862)
Expense not deductible for tax NAIHIF A 7 2 2,323 363 2,686
Tax loss utilised EBAHIEESE (180) = (180)
Adjustments in respect of BT FEENEIRIE 2

current tax of previous year PR (10) 320 310
Effect of withholding tax on 7R E A B A R

the distributable A BE AR R

profits of the Group’s S EBFER B

Mainland China subsidiary, s A B TR0 B s 2

associates and joint ventures - 6,019 6,019
Tax charge for the year REEHIAR 10 25,768 25,778
The share of tax attributable to associates and joint FE(HEMENTRAEE M ETIEA
ventures amounting to HK$236,000 (2013: HK$233,000) 236,000/ 7L (20134 : 233,000/8
and HK$2,274,000 (2013: HK$2,289,000) are included in JL) K 2,274,000 (2013 4F
share of profits and losses of associates and joint ventures, 2,289,000 7T) * B RIFTALRAIE
respectively, in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. mRARGHEARREEDE A

AR EEF -
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR AR MY R

31 December 2014
20144912 A 31 H

13.

14.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2014 includes a loss of
HK$3,965,000 (2013: profit of HK$451,000) which has been
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

DIVIDENDS

Interim dividends — HK2.0 cents
(2018: HK2.0 cents) per ordinary share

Proposed final dividends — HK3.8 cents =
(2013: HK3.8 cents) per ordinary share

On 13 August 2014, the board of directors declared an interim
dividend of HK2.0 cents per ordinary share.

The proposed final dividends for the year ended 31 December
2014 is subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The proposed final dividends for the year ended 31 December
2018 was approved at the annual general meeting on 20 May
2014,

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited sE&£EEZERARA A

13.

14.

FREIRR B — BB
2.0l (20134 : 2.078

HAREIRL A — R AR
3.878(l (20134 : 3.878

FAFIRBAEGRT

KAREEAREE2014F12 A31H
LEFE AL 4R E)E F B HE 3,965,000
S ITHE1E (2013 4F : 451,000 7THY

Sw Al - ERAR BB EHRA P RIE o
i

2014 2013

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET T

1p) 22,193 22,193

i) 42,167 42 167

64,360 64,360
E/\\2014¢8ﬂ13EI EEEEERET

PR AR 2.0 B A AR S, o

HE2014F 12 A31 BILFEENES
RER B BN EERRBFAS L&
BARRBRERALAE o

ARRAFHR201445 520 B BFRKARE
AFERE EHEREEZ20134128
31 HIEFERERARIRE -



Notes to Financial Statements
P %

31 December 2014
201412 A31H

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 15. FAFHBARESFERET]
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on: FIRERBF 2 5HEEZER
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FA&T
Earnings 23
Profit attributable to owners of the NATER A
Company, used in the basic earnings R - ARETE
per share calculation R EAREAF 80,933 104,234

Number of shares

RHEE
Shares [:4v)
Weighted average number of RARIE BT AR
ordinary shares of the Company IniEEE - AREE
in issue used in the basic HRREAR A

earnings per share calculation 1,109,662,000 1,109,662,000

No diluted earnings per share is presented as there were no HREIZ 2013 F % 2014F 12 A31 8
potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue for the years ended IEFERTEETEEE BT EER
31 December 2013 and 2014. Bxfn - B E25| GAREEE RA) o
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PR AR MY R

31 December 2014
20144912 A 31 H

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. V¥ - BERR®E

Group REE
Construction Buildings and Motor Office
in progress structures vehicles equipment Total
TRIER BFREEN RE  BAERE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TEL T T
Cost: R :
At 1 January 2013 R2013E1 A1R 122,758 685,862 4,220 1,590 814,430
Additions NE 136,456 1,408 1,123 308 138,295
Transfers ECyed (178,607) 178,607 = = =
Disposals e - - (692) (254) (946)
Exchange redignment B 30 3,008 23,109 109 40 26,266
At 31 December 2013 M20135612A31H
and 1 January 2014 R2014E1 A 18 82,615 888,986 4,760 1,684 978,045
Additions NE 69,828 6,932 894 110 71,764
Transfers iy (140,030) 140,030 - - -
Disposals e - (55) (325) (14) (394)
Exchange redignment [ 3% (1,538) (23,014) (102) (33) (24,687)
At 31 December 2014 12014512 A31 B 10,875 1,012,879 5,227 1,747 1,030,728
Accumulated depreciation: 23t &
At 1 January 2013 R2013E1A1R - 175,289 2,523 9% 178,807
Provided for during EREH-MT9
the year - note 9 - 39,605 678 201 40,484
Disposals HE - - (651) (187) (838)
Exchange redignment [ j{ 392 - 5,789 66 27 5,882
At 31 December 2013 1201312 A31H
and 1 January 2014 k2014118 - 220,683 2,616 1,036 224,335
Provided for during EREH-MT9
the year - note 9 - 45,228 710 207 46,145
Disposals i - (195) - (13) (208)
Exchange redignment [ 38% - (5,748) (59) (23) (5,830)
At31 December 2014 12014512 A31H - 259,968 3,267 1,207 264,442
Net carrying amount: REFE:
At31 December 2014 R 20145128318 10,875 752,911 1,960 540 766,286
At 31 December 2013 1201312 A31H 82,615 668,303 2,144 648 758,710

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited sE&£EEZERARA A



Notes to Financial Statements

AR SRR M

31 December 2014
201412 A31H

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 16. ¥ - WERRE (Z)
As at 31 December 2014, certain of the Group’s buildings MR2014F 12 A31H ' AEBE KM@
and structures with a net carrying amount of HK$199,766,000 S B £ 199,766,00078 JT (20134 :
(2013: HK$219,516,000) were pledged to banks to secure 219,516,000 7C) K& TIEF RiEE
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 26). YIERIRFIRIT - (EARAEER T

17.

RITRAE MPER (MI5E26) ©

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 17. BfFLiES
Group
rEE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Carrying amount at 1 January »®1 A1 BRREE 43,658 43,387
Amortised during the year — note 9 FREESE — 9 (995) (998)
Exchange realignment B 54, 8 BE (1,063) 1,269
Carrying amount at 31 December K12 A 31 BMEREE 41,600 43,658
Current portion included in prepayments, — sFATEN TR * e REM
deposits and other receivables FEWRIER R ENZB (1,052) (1,078)
Non-current portion ERENEL 40,548 42,580
All the Group’s leasehold lands were held under long term AEEZAE LR RBMLF
leases and were situated in Mainland China. B RO B A, o
As at 31 December 2014, certain of the Group’s leasehold R2014F12A31H AEEEK®@
lands with a net carrying amount of HK$12,442,000 (2013: FE A12,442,0007 7T (2013 4F -
HK$13,056,000) were pledged to banks to secure banking 13,056,000 7T ) & THE L#E
facilities granted to the Group (note 26). IR TIRIT - (ERARANE BT HRIT

BB R EIR (FizE26) o
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31 December 2014
20144912 A 31 H

18. GOODWILL

Cost and net carrying amount at the FH) R F R

beginning and end of the year N AREFE

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is related
to the cash-generating unit of terminal storage and the
handling of liquid chemicals. Its recoverable amount has been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year
period approved by senior management. The discount rate
applied to the cash flow projections is 9.2% (2013: 9.5%) and
cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using
an inflation rate of 5% (2013: 5%).

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the
cash-generating unit of terminal storage and the handling of
liquid chemicals. The following describes each key assumption
on which management has based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and

reflects specific risks relating to the relevant units.

Inflation rate — The basis used to determine the value assigned
to cost of sales and the revenue price are the forecast price
indices during the budget year in the PRC.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited sE&£EEZERARA A

18. W&

Group
AEH
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET AT
1,210 1,210
AERER B

BREGAHEEZEESRREL
EnNBEREREENRESELS
i - Rl el BERNASREE
BmEE 2 ERESE - MESRE
TR T S R e IR B 2 AR
BEEmME - RERERAER 2
PIRE E9.2% (20134 : 9.5%) * M
HRRFHRANEeRERIER%
(2013 4F : 5%) Z BIREHER] o

AERSEL BRI EmIBEAR
F R EREERE 3 ARK -
UTHRAEEBBAERRER
ALAETREERENAZSBEIER

.
=

THEFE-ERZITREREHA - I
RREFBARESELBUZRHER

B -

BRE-RAREEDEBEEHEEN
ARWABRHEESEEFEES
BRI BRI -



19.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Unlisted shares, at cost

Amounts due from subsidiaries

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
and have no fixed terms of repayment. In the opinion of the
directors, these advances are considered as quasi-equity

loans to the subsidiaries.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Name

&%

Ocean Ahead Limited

Edford Investments Limited

REBREBBRAT]

Dragon Bussan
International Limited

EAMEBRAT

Notes to Financial Statements - 9

MBwRME L

31 December 2014
201412 A31H

19. REATMHRE

Company
KA FE]

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
KEmMIRGD - KA 1 1
FEUSH B A AR IE 245,437 258,105
245,438 258,106

RHIERRMBREREER 2580
BEEERY BFER/ RFBK
BIERKE A RREERBER

TEMBARFRAT :
Place of Issued Percentage
incorporation/ ordinary/ of equity
registration registered attributable to Principal
and business share capital the Company activities
R BT  ADQTFELRE FEER
ENISE S EiE Mg A Bk
Direct Indirect
HiE iEe
BVI/Hong Kong US$100 100 - Investment holding
REERRES 1003E7T REER
S B
BVI/Hong Kong US$1 - 100 Dormant
REERRES = TNEB
S B
Hong Kong Ordinary - 100 Investment holding
B US$600,000 and provision of
Non-voting marketing services
deferred JEER R
US$900,000 RETIS
(note a) HEARTS
=g tilile
600,000 37T
BRRERT
% 900,000 T
(KizFa)
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2014412 A 31 H

19.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

19.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)
Place of
incorporation/
registration
Name and business
H1B i) A
BRI ES S
Dragon Crown Hong Kong
Petrochemicals BB
Terminal (Holdings)
Limited
BEAACREE(RE)
BRAF]
Dragon Source Industrial Hong Kong
Limited BB
EALTERAA
Nanjing Dragon Crown Liquid PRC/
Chemical Terminal Company  Mainland China
Limited (“NJDC”) (note b) B, B ARE

MREARER TREERSE
BRAR ([FREA]) (HEb)

Ocean Access Investments Hong Kong
Limited BB
BRBERER AR

Issued
ordinary/
registered
share capital
1T

B MR

Ordinary
US$26,600,000
Non-voting
deferred
US$500,000
(note a)

=gl
26,600,000 37T
B ERERE
1% 500,000 £ 7T
(MizEa)

Ordinary
HK$26,000,000
Non-voting
deferred
HK$2,000,000
(note a)

TR
26,000,000 7T
BREERLT

% 2,000,000 47T
(Kizxa)

US$52,254,820
52,254,820 7T

HK$1
1787T

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited sE&EEZERARA A

RBARNRE (Z)
FENBARFFHELT :
(&)
Percentage
of equity
attributable to Principal
the Company activities
AN R FEAL IR FE TEEK
ER)
Direct Indirect
=E;:3 iE
= 100 Investment holding
and provision of
finance and
management
services
REER K
TRAEE A
E1E RS

= 100  Investment holding
and provision of
accounting services
REZER et
SRS

- 88.61 Terminal storage
and handling of
liquid chemicals
REGLEmisEE

NS

= 100 Investment holding
and provision of
administrative and
technical services
REER KR
TR R AT AR 7%
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19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 19. RMBATMKRE (Z)

Note: BifsE

(@  The non-voting deferred shares do not entitle the holders () EREEELERMITERTHEBS
thereof to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any B A R W ER AR 3R K & 388 AN 3k H R
general meeting of the respective companies. The holders BRARTABRRERASHANE &
of the non-voting deferred shares are not entitled to any = o mIR TR R (DA A ERE
dividends. On a winding-up, the holders of the non-voting IWWEERIAR B o IRIBRREF @ FEIRE
deferred shares are entitled, out of the surplus assets of the BEERGEBA  BEREER
respective companies, to a return of the capital paid up on RIBRBREER  BREFREHAE
the non-voting deferred shares held by them to one half of G TREIR AR D AR 2 RN » &%
the balance after a total sum of HK$100,000,000,000,000 ZAEEERERERARNEBRY
has been distributed in such winding-up in respect of the Ik #8258 100,000,000,000,00078 TT.1&
ordinary shares of the respective companies. BB D2 — °

(b)  The dividend distribution of this subsidiary is subject to the (o) IRIFRITMELZH  ZWBRRZ

approval of the lender under a bank facility arrangement.
As at the date of this report, such bank facility arrangement
was ceased.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

Details of the Group’s subsidiary that has material non-
controlling interests are set out below:

REDEABISERAZHAE = 1
AfE R ZRITHELER
1k o

EERA LR ZARFAMBR
AEBUAFEREELZENBK
AEBAHOEEFE - EFRS
Al EMH B AR EBREZE
FHER LK -

UTEIEAAEENBARREE
ROFFER RS Z 515

wre

»

NJDC AREA
2014 2013
Percentage of equity interest held 1T AR i 2 P i R BE AT
by non-controlling interests in NJDC IxEB DL 11.39% 11.39%
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FAT
Profit for the year allocated to FANDIE T IR R
non-controlling interests il 12,402 14,073
Dividends paid to non-controlling X T REREAIEER
interests of NJDC w2 B - 20,175
Accumulated balances of non-controling ~ JEIZRRSFEZS SR HEHR
interests at the reporting dates Z RIEKERR 66,045 68,899
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19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 19. RBARNKRE (&)
The following tables illustrate the summarised financial T EH ARt R A B E B AR B R
information of the above subsidiary. The amounts disclosed Z o I BECEIDAETAARRE
are before any inter-company eliminations: fi= NN
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Revenue A 261,574 270,020
Other revenue EH g A 2,378 7,952
Total expenses BHX (155,071) (153,212)
Profit for the year FR A 108,881 124,760
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FRE2EWR A 4258 92,335 141,453
Current assets MBNEE 157,138 126,920
Non-current assets IEMENE E 815,350 811,557
Current liabilities mEBBEE 327,651 187,861
Non-current liabilities FEREAE 59,966 140,877
Net cash flows from operating activities LRSI TSI & M2 FR 163,814 162,461
Net cash flows used in KB IEEFTH
investing activities REREFEE (61,987) (142,446)
Net cash flows from/(used in) mMEEFE,(FTA)BE:
financing activities mEFER (55,598) 31,226
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (84 MIR& S EW1E 0 %58 46,229 51,241
20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 20. PEBREBATRRSE
Group
AEEH
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx T
Share of net assets EIHEEFE 19,389 20,424

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited sE&EEZERARA A
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MBmRME L7
31 December 2014
201412 A31H

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 20. PHELATNKRE (Z2)

Particulars of the Group’s principal associate as at 31 R2014F 12 A31 HASE 2 EBH

December 2014 are as follows: ZATREERHT ¢

Percentage of

Particulars Place of equity interest

of issued registration attributable to
shares held and business the Group Principal

Name BEE®T EE 19N REEESL activities

=1 BB By Sk RETDL FEHEK

Tianjin Tianlong Liquid Registered PRC/ 65  Terminal storage

Chemicals Storage and capital of Mainland and handling of
Transportation Co., Ltd. #* US$1,950,000 China liquid chemicals
(REXRERBIHFE HftER  REREA REB(LE MR
BIRAF]) 1,950,000 7T PSR RET MR iR

¢ Pursuant to the articles of association, the Group has g BEARERMAR  AEEHZE
significant influence but not unilateral control over this BAESEATE  BEE -
entity.

* Associates whose statutory financial statements are not * & RN RIREE M SRR IERE
issued by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member VB K & 5T RN S 7% A sl e ok B R 4
firm of the Ernst & Young global network. AREMBK B AFTIE -

The interests in associates are indirectly held by the Company. REtE AR 2w B AR R RER

o

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial TRTFAREE BRI TEE 2B

information of the Group’s associate that are not individually RAEIZAHHTEER

material:

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Share of associates’ profit/(loss) FE(EHEE R A FA
for the year swmA, (E18) (529) 409
Share of associates’ other FE(GHEE A A
comprehensive income/(loss) Hib2mk A/ (BiE) (506) 592
Share of the associates’ total i YNG|
comprehensive income/(loss) Z2EWA,(E51E) a5 (1,035) 1,001
Aggregate carrying value of the Group’s REEREEE A A
investments in associates & 7 IR E 19,389 20,424
Annual Report 2014 FE#H% 109



110

Notes to Financial Statements

B AR MY R

31 December 2014
2014412 A 31 H

21. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 21.

Share of net assets EIEEEFE

Particulars of the Group’s joint ventures are as follows:

ReEELENRE
Group
rEH
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAT
27,467 27,729

AEETRELORNFHENT ¢

Percentage of

Particulars Place of Bt
of issued registration  Ownership Voting Profit Principal
Name shares held  and business interest power’ sharing activities

BEERT

g ROFE SMREBLH BEEEERZ REE EORH TEXEK
Ningbo Ningxiang RMB7,350,000 PRC/ 60 60 60 Terminal storage
Liquid Chemicals AR#7350,0007C  Mainland China and handling of
Terminal Co., Ltd.** R liquid chemicals
(BREMRILFHE F B R BB misE
HBEERAT) AN HE
Ningbo Xinxiang RMB4,200,000 PRC/ 60 60 60 Terminal storage
Liquid Chemical AR# 4,200,000/  Mainland China and handling of
Store Co., Ltd.#* HE, liquid chemicals
(BEREFAREL F B R R B miSEE
TERBHEARAR) 7 Mg

The interests in the joint ventures are indirectly held by the
Company.

s Pursuant to the articles of association, the Group has joint
control of these entities with other joint venture partners.

* Joint ventures whose statutory financial statements are not

issued by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member
firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited sE&EEZERARA A

ARABEERE A SRR -

# RIBEBEIRZAA - K& ,Hﬁﬁ

B BB IR % %E‘%
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Notes to Financial Statements

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial

BA RS SRR M

31 December 2014
201412 A31H

21. REBELRHRE(E)

TRFIAREEERIETERZZAE

information of the Group’s joint ventures that are not HEZEFTHEER
individually material:
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Share of the joint ventures’ profit EhEEEE
for the year F A 6,495 6,325
Share of the joint ventures’ e ERH
other comprehensive income/(loss) Hi2mk A (E8) 617) 676
Share of the joint ventures’ EhEERE
total comprehensive income EEMABEE 5,878 7,001
Aggregate carrying amount of AEEREG E1BE
the Group’s investments & 2 BEREE
in the joint ventures 27,467 27,729
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 22, MBEUAR

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit, except for new customers, where payment in
advance is normally required. The credit period is generally 30
days, extending to up to 60 days for major customers. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. Accounts receivable are non-interest-bearing.
The carrying amounts of accounts receivable approximate to
their fair values.

BRIEF —RABELNFIN  AEH
MEPAZZEERY - ERH—R
BI0K - EBEFPHBGHIRARE
REG0X - AEBBBIESHEREE
FEW RS - mAREIEE S EMEXSB
HIFE R - EURAR NS 8 B 5UR - UK
RRMBREERE AR ERS
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22. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 22,

An aging analysis of the accounts receivable at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

PR AR (=)

RBEHR - RIBZZ A HMAERN
FEUSRFBRE DATANT

Current to 30 days BNERZE 30K
31 to 60 days 31 260K
61 to 90 days 61 290K
Over 90 days 90 R E

Group

rEH
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAT
28,333 31,944
3,475 10,230
204 3,458
10 1
32,022 45,633

An aging analysis of the accounts receivable that are not
considered to be impaired is as follows:

BEAR B HANARRE
BEIO K IAA
BHA90 KA

Neither past due nor impaired
Within 90 days past due
Over 90 days past due

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to
customers for which there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to
independent customers that have a good track record with
the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that no provision for impairment
is necessary in respect of the balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.

112 Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited sE&EEZERARA A

AR AE BB Y FE LR SR Y BR e ) AT 40
T

Group

rEE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FATT
31,808 42,174
204 3,458
10 1
32,022 45,633

BREAR 2 H IR AR O (B O FE U R 51 T AT
HAY S R R sk R P AR

ERMERBER KRR EF T
F(RAEEER R IFOEALE)
1HRE - ENBELR  ARREFER
DR A A A2 BB - BB AR
AERRERE R



23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES

Prepayments
Dividend receivables
Deposits and other receivables

Portion classified as
current assets

Portion classified as
non-current assets

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.
The financial assets included in the above balances relate to
deposits and receivables for which there was no recent history
of default. The carrying amounts of these deposits and other

NP
EUALE

B R EAEKFIR

It

*E S
K«E VAl

Y

FY#B

aF

BEE

9

S5

DERIERBEE

R

receivables approximate to their fair values.

Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2014
201412 A31H

23. Wfi® - e Rk A MERRIRA

Group
rEH

2014 2013
HK$000  HK$'000
TR TAT

2,977 12,462

675 1,196

Company
PN

2014 2013
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
320 188
313,384 260,193
227 488

3,652 13,658

(3,652) (3,040)

313,931 260,869

(313,931)  (260,869)

- 10,618

B EEBEARBIICRIRIE - Lt i
ST EENEREERKIIY EHR
LHENZEE MERFIRER - ZFR
T REMBEFENKREERE QA

BRE -
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24, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

24, BERBAELEED

Group Company
REE RATH
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET AT FET AT
Cash and bank balances R & RIRTTEERR 110,718 101,007 114,914 4,903
Time deposits with original [RERHA
maturity of less BB =1EA
than three months 2 EHTER 192,968 181,027 - 108,077
Time deposits with original JREZIEA A 28
maturity of more =& A &9 7€ Ef
than three months 3 18,864 38,421 - 38,421
Cash and cash equivalents BRI R A
on the statement of HeMREEFEEY
financial position 322,550 320,455 114,914 146,401

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted
to HK$286,184,000 (2013: HK$295,882,000). The carrying
amounts of cash and cash equivalents approximate to their fair
values.

RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
varying periods of between one day and six months depending
on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn
interest at the respective short term time deposit rates. The
bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited sE&EEZERARA A

RAZRERR AEBUAARE
TARE DFHERR S RIRTTERE
286,184,000 7T (2013 £F : 295,882,000
B - Be LR FEYNREESR
HARERE -

ARBIEE R BKEMER - R
i ARER B A O NE B IR (515D
M(HEE - EERNEEEBRE) &
SEEAE S BERBEEITINE R
RIT - BARBELBRAEBER -

FRIRTTHEIR ST HRITERA R
HF B SR BREUK S, o RS HIE IR
HRE—RBINEA B AEE RS
FRME - A ANERERRE B BBE
NMEREFME - |RITHEBRRERIH
BENTR  FERIAIRTT °



25. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Other payables Ho e kIR
Accruals FEstE A
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEHH B AR FRIE
Receipt in advance TEURIE

Notes to Financial Statements

BA RS SRR M

31 December 2014
201412 A31H

25. HttERBEREER

Group Company
rEE PN

2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
THER FAT FET AT
26,415 18,762 - -
45,120 37,784 1,140 1,244
- - 22,495 17,005
- 1,222 - -
71,535 57,768 23,635 18,249

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

As at 31 December 2014, included in other payables of the
Group was a payable of HK$1,249,300 (2013: HK$1,280,700)
due to the Nanjing Chemical Industry Park Management
Committee which is the parent company of Nanjing Chemical
Industry Park Company Limited, a non-controlling interest
of the Group, representing the remaining outstanding
balance due to acquiring a prepaid land lease. Upon certain
conditions being fulfiled by the Nanjing Chemical Industry Park
Management Committee, such as land levelling, the amount
will be settled.

As at 31 December 2014, included in other payables of the
Group was a dividend payable of HK$22,590,000 (2013:
HK$9,382,000) due to Nanjing Chemical Industry Park
Company Limited, a non-controlling interest of the Group. The
amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Other than the balances mentioned above, other payables
are non-interest-bearing and have an average term of one
month. The carrying amounts of other payables and accruals
approximate to their fair values.

B QRN AR R EER - TS
FIRBERIEE -

R2014%F12 A31H » AEBEHME
NREAREENE R LB TEEE
ZEg(AAEEEERARBERE
BETXRARAFNEAR)WFRIE
1,249,300/ 7T (20134F 1,280,700/
gL HEREESEN T HEER
FE IR BB RIBHEE - FFREERLE
T¥REEEZBERE THRE(A
TR % - ZRIBEETEE -

R2014F12 831 H - AEEEfbfE
ISRIA A B HE BT AR & B BRI AR A
AEREETERARAAARE
22,590,000 70 (20134 : 9,382,000
BIT) o R EAEER - £ ERIR

Bk £ Pt A ERSD - MBI RIA RS
TR B EFHERRALS—EA - Hh
ENFUANEERNEREREER
A{EAEE -
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INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS

Effective
interest

rate (%)
BEBRFZE (%)

Current

RETHD

Secured Hong Kong Interbank
Offer Rate (“HIBOR"),
plus 2%

HEM EBRITERF BN =
([ BEBRITREFE
ME]) +2%

Unsecured 4% per annum

AR FHE 4%

Non-current
ERETB D
Secured

BiEH

Unsecured

EIEH

Analysed into:
Bank loans repayable:
Within one year
In the second year

In the third to fifth years, inclusive

HIBOR, plus 2%

FRRITRAEFENE+2%

4% per annum
FME4%

26. FFERHBITE®

Maturity
FHA

2015
(2013: 2014)
20154

(20134 : 2014 4F)

2015
20154

2016 to 2017
(2013: 2015 to 2017)
2016 FZE 2017 4
(20134 : 20154F
E20174F)

(2013: 2015)
(20134 : 20154F)

DT
RITEFRNAT HREIEE -
15R
E2F

FIESF (RIEERMF)

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited sE&EEZERARA A

Group

rEE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET BT
28,333 14,167
62,465 -
90,798 14,167
42,500 70,833
- 64,035
42,500 134,868
133,298 149,035
90,798 14,167
28,333 92,368
14,167 42,500
133,298 149,035
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Notes to Financial Statements

INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

The Group’s bank loans were secured by:

(i) corporate guarantees granted by the Company;

(i) fixed charges over certain buildings and structures
with a net carrying amount of HK$199,766,000 as at
31 December 2014 (2013: HK$219,516,000) (note
16); and

(i) fixed charges over certain leasehold lands with
a net carrying amount of HK$12,442,000 as at
31 December 2014 (2013: HK$13,056,000) (note 17).

The carrying amounts of bank loans approximate to their fair
values at the end of the reporting period.

Except for an unsecured borrowing of HK$62,465,000 as
at 31 December 2014 (2013: HK$64,035,000) which is
denominated in Renminbi, all borrowings are in Hong Kong
dollars.

BA RS SRR M

31 December 2014
201412 A31H

ARBITER(E)

Bt -

REBORITERTIALATIRE 1E
AR

0] AATRERDEER

iy M2014F128318  H B
T % (& /199,766,000 7T
(20134 : 219,516,000 %8
L) METEFREEYHE
EHIR (FIEE16) « &

@iy 20145128318 - LM
SFE A12,442,00078 7T (2013
£ 1 13,056,000/ 7T ) B &
A& i A E E AR (B
17) ©

REREHR - RITERNEEEE
MR20145F 128318 BUARKE
SHE R £ 18 3 15 B 62,465,000 78 7T

(20134F : 64,035,000787T) 24N -
FrEEEH B ITEHE »
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2014412 A 31 H

27. DEFERRED TAX 27. RIEEIRIA
The movements of deferred tax liabilities and assets during the RAFERLEFREASBENNEEZEF
year are as follows: BN RR ¢
Deferred tax liabilities EEHRIESE
Group REE
Withholding
taxes
FENB
HK$’000
THT
At 1 January 2013 7R 201341 H1H 6,061
Deferred tax charged to the statement B F N m Rk RARERIE
of profit or loss during the year 6,019
Withholding tax paid on repatriation of MWBAFR - GEDENBEAF]
earnings from subsidiaries, B 1 28 1) i 52 - A9 TR H A
joint ventures and associates (6,374)
Exchange realignment HEE 54 R B 193
At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 72013412 A31 H X% 201451 A1 H 5,899
Deferred tax charged to the statement B FANEmRINGRAELETIE
of profit or loss during the year 4,898
Withholding tax paid on repatriation of HMBAR] - AECEREENF]
earnings from subsidiaries, B HH 28 7| i se A~ Y TR0
joint ventures and associates (5,499)
Exchange realignment HE 5, 8 B (215)
At 31 December 2014 M2014412 A31 B 5,083
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27. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax assets

Group

At 1 January 2013

Deferred tax charged to the statement of
profit or loss during the year

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2013,
1 January 2014 and
31 December 2014

Notes to Financial Statements

BA RS SRR M

31 December 2014
201412 A31H

27. BERE(Z)
EERBREE
REE
Timing difference on revenue

recognition of taxable profit
FERBURFIMABZNREEER

HK$’000

T

R2013%F1 A1H 1,452
B F N8R IR RIEFIE

(1,473)

PE i A% 21

M2013412 A31H -
201451 A1 HK
201412 A 31 H -

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 5% to 10%
withholding tax rate is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from foreign investment enterprises established in
Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings generated after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a
tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%.
The Group is therefore liable to withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by the subsidiary, associates and joint ventures
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated
from 1 January 2008.

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$60,613,000 (2013: HK$41,625,000) that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have
not been recognised in respect of these losses as they have
arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some
time and in the opinion of the directors, it is not considered
probable that taxable profits will be available against which the
tax losses can be utilised.

BIBER BB ERETOE - MR E A
PRI EIINE T EHPIRIMNE E B B IRK
BB 5% = 10% B FEF © 5%
T H2008F 1 A1 HRER @ i@
2007 F12 B31 B2 BEANE
I o i B At B SR INS A 2 P )
EREREE BB EERRE - AR
BIRTEMNB R - wAEEmMS -
HRAMERS% - ALt - NEBE AR
RABRHA B AR - BEA
A REETFERN2008F1 A1 HE
FTiS &R IR SEMTEFL o

AEBERRBTECHEER
60,613,00077C(20134F : 41,625,000
AB7T)  AHERARNREELER 2
RAW B RERTOGN - ARNELE
ERBEENMBARCEE —RE
[ - MBS S B R R IA
BE BEERRTATRESELRE
ARV A AR $E 7 R 518 o
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28.

29.

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised: ETE
4,000,000,000 (2013: 4,000,000,000)
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

Issued and fully paid: ERTRHE
1,109,662,000 (2013: 1,109,662,000)

ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted on 23 May 2011 (the
“Share Option Scheme”) to provide incentives to eligible
participants (including employees, executives or officers,
directors including non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors, advisers, consultants, suppliers,
customers and agents of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries) for their contribution to the long term growth of
the Group and to enable the Company to attract and retain
high calibre employees. During the years ended 31 December
2014 and 2013, no share options were granted, exercised or
cancelled by the Company under the Share Option Scheme.
There were no outstanding share options under the Share
Option Scheme as at 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited sE&EEZERARA A

4,000,000,000 f%
(20134 : 4,000,000,000 %)
FREECI0E T E B

1,109,662,000 f%
(20134 : 1,109,662,000 %)
FREE010/8TT BEAR

28.

29.

B
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$000
TR TAT
400,000 400,000
110,966 110,966

MRBxfEatE

AEER 201145 A 23 B IRANER#E
srEl ([t ]) - B EREEE
BREE (BEAR R SEAEMME
RNAIZIEE  ITRABS SRS
B (RREFATESRE IIENT
Bx) B #WE - #HER B
PRARRE) &t HERNEE R
RIEH 2 BRL - REARQ T RN RIE
BRai8BsEE - REZE2014F K
201312 A1 HIEFEA » AR F]
BERRERETSIRD - 176
5 B8 AR A o 7A2014F12 318 -
RE AR ST 3 T AR AT T8 2 B AR
(20134 : &) -



Notes to Financial Statements

30. RESERVES

(a)

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements

therein are presented in the consolidated statement of

changes in equity.

0

(i)

(i)

Capital reserve

Capital reserve mainly represents the difference
between the consideration and the book value of
the share of the net assets acquired in respect of
the acquisition of non-controlling interests.

Reserve funds

In accordance with the relevant regulations
applicable in the PRC, the Group’s subsidiary
established in the PRC is required to transfer a
certain percentage of its statutory annual profit
after tax (after offsetting any prior year’s losses), if
any, to the reserve funds until the balance of the
funds reaches 50% of its respective registered
capital. Subject to certain restrictions as set out in
the relevant PRC regulations, the statutory surplus
fund may be used to offset against accumulated
losses of the PRC subsidiary. The amount of the
transfer is subject to the approval of the board of
directors of the PRC subsidiary.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of operations
in the PRC which are dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policy set out in note 3.

30. fEf@

(@)

BA RS SRR M

31 December 2014
201412 A31H

AEH

AEENREIAEESHZ7

JISONSY

(i)

(i)

HEBR o

B

ERFRETIERBREE
TR R KB RE

P EEFECEHNE
e

HEEE

RAE A B E A /AR A
ﬁ*$ﬁl%¢l&im
MEBAREKRETAES
ﬁ%ﬁkﬁ&@ﬁMﬂﬂ
BAFEBER)EEF
EmAl(me) =HEE
Tt BHEESEHENT
MERE50% - EEETH
R BER T E TR
T EERBAESA
AR SEH BB A Rl
ZEEE  ERSFEAK
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31 December 2014
2014412 A 31 H

30. RESERVES (continued)

(b) Company

At 1 January 2013

Total comprehensive
income for the year

Interim 2013 dividends

Final 2012 dividends paid

Proposed final 2013
dividends

At 31 December 2013
and 1 January 2014

Total comprehensive
income for the year

Interim 2014 dividends

Final 2013 dividends paid

Proposed final 2014
dividends

At 31 December 2014

*

®2013%F1 818
FREHERALLE

2013 FhHAZ B

B 2012 F AR E
2% 2013 FARERR B

2013412 A 31 H
20141 A1 H
FAZEIEAREE

2014 F R EIAR B

B 2013 RS
EZ 2014 FREIR S

2014512 A 31 H

30. kil (#2)
(b) Z&AF
Proposed
final
Share Retained dividends
premium profits =43 Total
BipaE REHEAN RKERE st
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT T FHT T
431,509 89,724 61,031 582,264
- 37,121 - 37,121
- (22,193) - (22,193)
- - (61,031) (61,031)
- (42,167) 42,167 -
431,509* 62,485* 42,167 536,161
- 67,881 - 67,881
- (22,193) - (22,193)
- - (42,167) (42,167)
- (42,167) 42,167 -
431,509* 66,006* 42,167 539,682

These reserve accounts comprises the reserves of

HK$497,515,000 (2013: HK$493,994,000) in the
statement of financial position.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited sE&EEZERARA A
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31.

32.

Notes to Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

Major non-cash transactions

(@ As at 31 December 2014, the Group recorded other
payables and accruals in relation to additions of
property, plant and equipment of HK$28,317,000 (2013:
HK$21,260,000). The additions have had no cash
flow impact on the Group during the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2013.

(o) During the year ended 31 December 2014,
HK$10,618,000 (2013: HK$403,000) in relation to
purchase of property, plant and equipment was
transferred from prepayments to property, plant and
equipment.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has provided
a guarantee, amounting to approximately HK$181,000,000
(2013: HK$181,000,000), to banks in connection with loans
granted to subsidiaries. As at 31 December 2014, the loan
balance of subsidiaries subject to guarantees given to banks
by the Company amounted to approximately HK$70,833,000
(2013: HK$85,000,000).

31.

32.

PR AR AL

31 December 2014
201412 A31H

FeRKNERME

TEHRERS

@ M2014F128318 ' A5 E
BREBEBEBRNDE BE K
% {5 B9 H fth FE S R IE K FE ET
£ 28,317,00078 7T (2013 4F
21,260,000 7T) © 2RI E 7R
& B R A £20144F K 20134
12 A 31 B IEFE AW IR 7
EvEo

(b) HZE2014F12A31BILLEFE -
EHREEYE  BEREHED
FKIH10,618,00078 7T (2013 4F :
403,000 7T ) ThEE 8 | ¥ = -
= I 55 s 2 TRATRR o

BRAR

RABERR  AEE A EEMER
HARRIE e

RAREER - AARBRETFHEA
RIZERMBITRE—HSBELY
181,000,000 JT 2 #& 1R(20134F :
181,000,000%7T) ° 72014412 A 31
B BEBEARRRERITELAER -
Bt B8 A 7] B FX B B8 2 49 70,833,000 %
75 (2013 4F : 85,000,000787T) °
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VIS BRI

31 December 2014
20144912 A 31 H

33. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 33. BEHARH
(@) Aslessor (@) fERHBEA
The Group leases certain portion of its office building AEEREBELCEHELZHHEE
under an operating lease arrangement, with the lease ESFEMNAE TS ZHEY
negotiated for a term of five years. W€ &5 ] o
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total RI|EEAR - NEBE R A H
future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable HICEHEN R RXEE B
operating leases with its tenant falling due as follows: AN T FHAmE P YR
Group
rEE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THT
Within one year 1R 886 510
In the second to fifth years, inclusive ~ F2EZF5FAN (BIEEERE) 1,181 1,191
2,067 1,701
(b) As lessees (b) fEREABEA
The Group leases certain portion of its office premises NEBRBEKSSHELZHHEE
and pipe racks under operating lease arrangements. EETHAMERER - ZZF
The leases are negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to 15 HAOFHBER1E15 F -
years.
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33. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

34.

(b)

As lessees (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

MB|RME A7

31 December 2014
201412 A31H

33. EZHEREE)
(b) EBEBAGE)
REREHIR - AREE 5 Al

HEEHENARKEHE A
BER TN FEHRBBAZN

Group

REE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#BxT FET
Within one year 1FRN 14,643 14,973
In the second to fifth years, inclusive 2 Z=5F (BIEEHEMSE) 52,597 55,413
After five years 5EA L 29,038 43,248
96,278 113,634

The Company had not entered into any operating lease
arrangements as at 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).

COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease arrangements detailed in
note 33 above, the Group had the following capital expenditure
commitments at the end of the reporting period:

Contracted, but not provided for:
Buildings and structures

Authorised, but not contracted for:

Buildings and structures

BF Y

BT REEY

The Company did not have any commitments as at 31
December 2014 (2013: Nil).

ERTAY - BRE

B BEARFTA

MR2014F12 A31 8 » XAAW
EET M IS EHEELHE (2013
FrE)o

34, *iE

B EXPHRES3 Pl E S ME L
SN MEHIR - NEEB THENR

A S A
Group
rEE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET THT
8,140 53,757
140,348 153,850

MR2014F 12 A31 B » KR AW EE
{AIAHE (20134 : &) o
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31 December 2014
20144912 A 31 H

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35. FMALES
(@) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in (@) BREFTS R R E A 5 praFl
these financial statements, the Group had the following REN s REBRFRNG E
transactions with related parties during the year: EEATHEITUATRS ¢
Group
TEH
Notes 2014 2013
B aE HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FH&T
Terminal storage income: PSSR -
Dragon Crown Investments M TEEREAR AR
Limited (“DC Investments”) ([BEAME TBRR 1) i) - 1,489
Terminal service expenses: ISR H
Nanjing Chemical Industry Park EAEEIERENA
Public Services Company Ltd. EEBREEAA (i) 1,950 1,940
Nanjing Chemical Industry Park ARMtETIXE
Management Committee EELZE® (i 571 1,090
Rental and auxiliary expenses: HERMBZ L
Nanjing Chemical Industry Park ER{EETHER
Company Limited BRAF]
(“Nanjing CIPC”) (= CIPC)) (ii) 14,223 12,310
DC Investments BEAME TBIRR (iv) 1,494 1,494

)
%
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Notes to Financial Statements

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

(continued)

Notes:

(i) Terminal storage income was charged in accordance
with the terms mutually agreed between the Group
and this related company in which a director of the
Company is the ultimate controlling shareholder of
this related company.

(ii) Terminal service expenses were charged in accordance
with the terms mutually agreed between the Group and
the related companies which were the group companies
of a non-controlling shareholder of NJDC.

(i)  Rental and auxiliary expenses were charged in
accordance with the terms mutually agreed between
the Group and a non-controlling shareholder of NJDC
for the use of pipe racks.

(iv)  Rental expense was charged in accordance with the
terms mutually agreed between the Group and the
related company for the use of an office premise.

The related party transactions in respect of items (i), (ii),
(i) and (iv) above also constitute continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

AR SRR M

31 December 2014
201412 A31H

BMBALRR(Z)
(@ &)
Bff%

(i)

(i)

(iv)

BB FRATIRIBEAEE
B8 B Bgt 73 A AR B 15 7€ B9 16K
WEL - AR —REERZ
BRSE X RO RASTERR AR R

ISBEMRTS e H TR IB A
B8 B Bgt 73 A AR B 15 7€ B 16K
SR NI L NIV T
AFEZERBERETOER R
Al e

HE KBS TR B A&
1% £ 3 B A M SRR AR OR
{68 P B 2R AR B 15 5E B 16K
M e

ME ST KRB AR E 8%
NI e b N E Y
B ERGR A -

AR ~ (i)~ (i) M (v) 15 R A
BB A TR S INER ET R A
FUUAETHHERERS -
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31 December 2014
20144912 A 31 H

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

Commitments with related parties

U

(i)

(i)

A subsidiary of the Group, as the lessor, entered
into a three-year terminal storage agreement
ending on 31 December 2015 with DC
Investments. On 27 October 2013, the above
terminal storage agreement was terminated.

A subsidiary of the Group, as the lessee, entered
into a three-year office lease agreement ending
on 31 December 2015 with DC Investments. As
at 31 December 2014, the total operating lease
commitments falling due within one year and
in the second to fifth years were approximately
HK$1,494,000 (2013: HK$1,494,000) and Nil
(2013: HK$1,494,000), respectively.

A subsidiary of the Group entered into certain
agreements with Nanjing CIPC for use of pipe
racks and auxiliary services ending on 14 March
2022 and on 6 January 2023, respectively.
As at 31 December 2014, the total operating
lease commitments in relation to pipe racks and
auxiliary services falling due within one year,
in the second to fifth years, and beyond the
fifth year were approximately HK$13,149,000
(2013: HK$13,480,000), HK$52,597,000 (2013:
HK$53,919,000) and HK$29,038,000 (2013:
HK$43,248,000), respectively.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited sE&£EEZERARA A

35.

MBALES (&)

(b)

) B R A T 4F 2 AR

U

(i)

(i)

AEEZ—HHEBARE
AH A EES L TR
T 220154 12 A 31
Bt AH=F 2 T5BEHER
3% o 2013410 A 27
B LiitEEEERED
iRk o

AEEZ —HHEARIE
AEAE A BB AL T BB
51 M B 220154 12 A 31
HitAB=FZHA=MH
Etpag o 12014512 A 31
H —FARFE_ZFH
FRRKEEHRERED T
#941,494,00078 7T (2013
& 11,404,000 L) B E
(2013 4F : 1,494,000
JT) °

AEE Tz —HHEARE
B R CIPCHL S BIfE A 42
KM B R e R] S E 2022
F3H14BK2023F1 A
6EItzETHE R -
R2014F12A31H @ —
FN -F_FEFAEK
RF Bz BEEHE &
Y& R4 413,149,000 7%
7T (2013 4F : 13,480,000
¥ 7T ) ~ 52,597,000 JT
(20134 : 53,919,000 7
JL ) % 29,038,000/ T
(2013 4F : 43,248,000
TT) °



Notes to Financial Statements - %

MB|RME A7

31 December 2014
201412 A31H

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 35. BABALXS (&)
(c) Details of the outstanding balances with related parties (c) BRAMEIALHREELERF
are included in note 25 to the financial statements. BN R FK M FE25 o
(d) Compensation of key management personnel of (d) FAEENETEEEASEHH
the Group
Group
REE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET F&T
Short term employee benefits EHE SR 9,351 10,255
Post-employment benefits RIKEER 66 60
Total compensation paid BfEEERE
to key management personnel A B W B4Rz 9,417 10,315
36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 36. RENESMEMTIR
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial REREHER  SELRTENER
instruments as at the end of the respective reporting period are BEEG| AT -
as follows:
Financial assets - loans and receivables SHEE - ERREWRE
Group
rEE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FiBTT
Accounts receivable JEUBR TR 32,022 45,633
Financial assets included in prepayments, st ATEN K ~ 128 R E M FEIL
deposits and other receivables (note 23) FIEM©EEE (MiFE23) 675 1,196
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 322,550 320,455
355,247 367,284
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31 December 2014
20144912 A 31 H

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 36.

(continued)

Financial assets — loans and receivables (continued)

Financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables (note 23)
Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities — at amortised cost

Other payables and accruals
Interest-bearing bank loans

Other payables and accruals

HANBSHEmMI R (E)

TREE -ERRERFUR(E)

Company
KA E]
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
STATERN K~ e REAmER
FIER € EE (M17E23) 313,611 260,681
ReRBFEEFEY 114,914 146,401
428,525 407,082
SHMAE - RBEKRYIER
Group
REE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
E b e FOE K FERT & A 71,535 57,768
SHESRITER 133,298 149,035
204,833 206,303
Company
KA F]
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx T
HEM A R ERTE R 23,635 18,249
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37.

Notes to Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and
cash equivalents and interest-bearing bank loans. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to finance the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as accounts receivable, financial assets included
in deposits and other receivables, and other payables and
accruals, which mainly arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board
of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s net debt obligations with
floating interest rates. The majority of the bank borrowings
bear interest at rates with reference to the HIBOR. The Group
mitigates the risk by monitoring closely the movements
in interest rates and reviewing its banking facilities and
borrowings regularly. The Group has not used any interest rate
swap to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

37.

AR SRR M

31 December 2014
201412 A31H

MERBREEHRRBR

AREHTESMTADERS R
SEEVURBRITER - F S
BIAZZARAAEE EEBE
A6 AREFARBIEOMAE
RAMH - PIMEEE RIS EEED
BT - 3t MBS R A
0 B ZE DA R Rt 4 RO R
#F -

AEESBTAMMS M EZRER R
MERR - FEERBRERDE M
% BEEERHMAUBEERLETRAR
MR - ZFBROMEBLT -

T 2 e

AEEEHNOTSNEEPEL T E
AR ELAF B R RET S HFEB R
EARME - KEDR|RITEENBTIZR
BRRITAXREXAE  AKEE
HBANGER ) 2R B a0 BE 4% I T BT IR
TREREESRERR - A&EW
RE) R E I R DR F R o
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31 December 2014
20144912 A 31 H

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

37. MERBRERARRBE (Z)

I (&)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a

reasonably possible change in the HIBOR, with all other

variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax

(through the impact on floating rate bank borrowings).

31 December 2014
HIBOR

31 December 2013
HIBOR

Credit risk

20144912 A 31 H

EBBITALREE

2013412 A 31 H

BRRITRAFRFER

The Group primarily provides services to recognised and

creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that

advanced payments are generally required for new customers.

In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing

basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Since the Group primarily provides services to recognised and

creditworthy third parties, there is normally no requirement for

collateral.
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Change in
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B2y Pk <)
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37.

Notes to Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The credit risk of the Group’s financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable
and financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, arises from default of the counterparties,
with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of
these instruments. As at 31 December 2014, there was a
concentration of credit risk as approximately 45.2% (2013:
66.7%) of the Group’s accounts receivable was due from one
debtor. The Company is also exposed to credit risk through
the granting of guarantee, further details of which are disclosed
in note 32 to the financial statements.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from accounts receivable, and financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables are disclosed in notes 22 and 23, respectively.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds by
considering the maturity of both its financial liabilities and
financial assets (for example, accounts receivable) and
projected cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
internal funding and bank loans to meet its working capital
requirements.

37.

AR SRR M

31 December 2014
201412 A31H

MERREEERRBE(Z)

=EEmE (&)

rEENEREE(RRESRES
ZEY - BUWEZR - ARTAER
o EREREMERRENERE
E)NEERR RSB
HeARRBRESERZEILANERT
B > R2014F 12 A31 H  ARAE
B fE U BR SRR B £ 45.2% (2013 4F
66.7%) R B —EBHA - BWEFEER
EERBEE AR FNEERKRS
RIEHER - BB EERTHR
KHIRE32 -

B ARNEEEWER R R ATERF
B RHEMEKZFIBNSMEEES
HEERRAE -T2 EES BIE
BRI FE22 [ 28 o

REBET/ER

AEEEERERAGBREREE
(Blan YRR A R FRAHE & TR
ERENIHAREREESRRN
Rz o

AEENBEREBERNITES M
RITENR EESFEMERBREZ
MG FE UWneREEEeT
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31 December 2014
20144912 A 31 H

w’/®

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 37. MERBEHEAERRKE (Z)
POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) B E T EE ()
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at AEERSREHRER S LARMEA
the end of the respective reporting period, based on the NN ERBENEIEERNT

contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

2014
3to
On Lessthan 12 months 1to5
demand 3 months 3{EAZE years Total
RER DLRIEA 1218 A 1E5%F At

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FET FHERT

Interest-bearing AT ERITER
bank loans - 63,212 29,299 43,358 135,869
Other payables E At RIA K
and accruals fEFHE R 23,839 47,696 - - 71,535
23,839 110,908 29,299 43,358 207,404
2013
3to
On Lessthan 12 months 1t05
demand 3 months 3 fEAZ years Total
wmER LRIEA 1218 A 1254 et
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FATT FAT FATT
Interest-bearing FTERITER
bank loans - 1,103 17,475 137,448 156,026
Other payables H e sRIE K
and accruals EETE R 10,662 47,106 = = 57,768

10,662 48,209 17,475 137,448 213,794
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37.

Notes to Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities as

at the end of the respective reporting period, based on the

contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

Other payables and accruals
Guarantee given to banks
in connection with loans
granted to subsidiaries
utilised at the end of
the reporting period

Other payables and accruals
Guarantee given to banks
in connection with loans
granted to subsidiaries
utilised at the end of
the reporting period

H At e 5R0R & e &
FAIAIPT I A IR AR
HIRERHE R
M A RITYEH YRR

H At e 5R0R S e & B
FAIAIPT I A IR AR S
HIRERH &R
M ARITEHER

AR SRR M

31 December 2014

20144512 A31H

37. MERRERERRBE (&)

REE A (E)

ZA/NGTNIS

EMEHRNER S LARRE

BNZeE @A ENRHERMT

2014
On Less than
demand 3 months Total
EER LPRIEA st
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FHET FET FHET
22,495 1,140 23,635
70,833 - 70,833
93,328 1,140 94,468
2013
On Lessthan
demand 3 months Total
ZEK PRIEA HET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHIT FAT AT
17,005 1,244 18,249
85,000 - 85,000
102,005 1,244 103,249
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31 December 2014
20144912 A 31 H

37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares.

The Group monitors the capital ratio on the basis of the debt-
to-adjusted capital ratio, which is calculated as the net debt
divided by equity attributable to owners of the Company plus
net debt. Net debt includes other payables and accruals and
interest-bearing bank loans, less cash and cash equivalents.
The debt-to-adjusted capital ratio as at the end of the
respective reporting period was as follows:

Other payables and accruals

Interest-bearing bank loans TEIRITER

Less: Cash and cash equivalents B Be kR EE

HE P

Net cash

Equity attributable to owners of

the Company
Capital and net debt EARBEFEE
Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio BERLHABRERL

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited sE&£EEZERARA A

H At FEAS 5RR S JEF T &

ZA/NCIE 2SN Y S

%

37. MERBRERARRBE (Z)

BEAXEE

AEBEAEENTEARA/RER
SEBRNBELEER  YHERSR
REEARLE KM BEETER
REARREMRTAREE -

Zﬁilaﬁﬁi\ﬁzﬁ SR AR IR AS A AR
B K AR A A B B A B Y N
J«Auﬂﬁﬁk REFFRFREERLERE - K
SEAARMRRENORE - MR
FIREBEARNEITHR ©

AEBZAEREREE AR L RET
BARLE - gt Ry & EFER
UARRRER ARG #ES N EFHE
ZMEE - AEFRBEEBENR
BN fERT B RLA NG BRITER - R
ﬁé&ﬁé%ﬁ% REREHR

BERLHBERLENT

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
71,535 57,768
133,298 149,035
(322,550) (320,455)
(117,717) (113,652)
938,984 942,596
821,267 828,944
N/A N/A




38.

39.

Notes to Financial Statements

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 12 February 2015, Dragon Crown Petrochemicals
Terminal (Holdings) Limited, (the “transferee”), entered into
an equity transfer agreement with Nanjing Chemical Industry
Park Company Limited, a non-controlling shareholder of
NJDC, for the acquisition of 1.4% equity interest in NJDC
at a cash consideration of approximately HK$9,700,000
(RMB7,750,000). The completion of acquisition shall take place
upon completion of registration of equity transfer with the local
authority. The transaction constitutes a connected transaction
under the Listing Rules. Further details are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 12 February 2015.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 24 March 2015.

38.

39.
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9 . Five Year Financial Summary
R HEMBHHRE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HIEE

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$000 HK$000
FER TAT TATT TATT TAET

REVENUE WA 261,574 270,020 257,770 240,675 233,024
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BB AR R 114,120 144,085 139,931 108,557 125,193
Tax 18 (20,910) (25,778)  (25,991) (5,319) (8,036)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRRF 93,210 118,307 113,940 103,238 117,157
Attributable to: AR AL FE(S -
Owners of the Company KATHEB A 80,933 104,234 99,100 90,076 96,745
Non-controlling interests FEfE AR i 12,277 14,073 14,840 13,162 20,412

93,210 118,307 113,940 103,238 117,157

At 31 December
M12H31H

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$E000
FREx  TAT  TAT TAT  TAT

ASSETS BE

Non-current assets IEmENEE 854,900 856,271 727,329 641,018 640,918
Current assets MENEE 361,465 372,751 314,685 451,493 104,187
Total assets BEMRE 1,216,365 1,229,022 1,042,014 1,092,511 745,105
LIABILITIES aE

Current liabilities mEEE 163,753 76,760 77,344 180,100 92,861
Non-current liabilities EmBEE 47,583 140,767 6,061 17,598 168,918
Total liabilities BERR 211,336 217,527 83,405 197,698 261,779
Net assets BERE 1,005,029 1,011,495 958,609 894,813 483,326
Total equity AR (E 1,005,029 1,011,495 958,609 894,813 483,326
The summary does not form a part of the audited financial statements. ZHEW DN REEZVBEREAN—FD °
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. NG Wai Man (Chairman)

Mr. TING Yian Ann (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. CHONG Yat Chin

Ms. CHAN Wan Ming

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen
Mr. LUO Shijie
Mr. ZHU Wujun

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (Chairman)
Mr. LUO Shijie

Mr. ZHU Wujun

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (Chairman)

Mr. LUO Shijie

Mr. ZHU Wujun

Mr. NG Wai Man

Mr. TING Yian Ann

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (Chairman)
Mr. LUO Shijie

Mr. ZHU Wujun

Mr. NG Wai Man

Mr. TING Yian Ann

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. CHONG Yat Chin
Ms. CHAN Wan Ming

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. CHONG Man Kit

AUDITOR
Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
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Corporate Information
NEIEHR

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONSULTANT
Strategic Financial Relations Limited

Unit A, 29/F., Admiralty Centre |,

18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Unit No. 3, 18th Floor

Convention Plaza, Office Tower

No. 1 Harbour Road

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC
No. 101, Hao-Jia-Ba, Xinli Village

County of Yudai

Nanjing Chemical Industry Park

Liuhe District, Nanjing City

Jiangsu Province, the PRC

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

IN CAYMAN ISLANDS
Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

COMPANY WEBSITE
www.dragoncrown.com
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